South Cambridgeshire Hall
Cambourne Business Park
Cambourne
Cambridge
CB23 6EA
t: 03450 450 500
f: 01954 713149
www.scambs.gov.uk

22 July 2021
To:

Quorum:

The Leader – Councillor Bridget Smith
Deputy Leader (Statutory) – Councillor Neil Gough
Members of the Cabinet – Councillors John Batchelor, Bill Handley,
Dr. Tumi Hawkins, Peter McDonald, Brian Milnes and John Williams
Three (including the Leader or Deputy Leader)

Dear Councillor
You are invited to attend the next meeting of Cabinet, which will be held in the Council
Chamber - South Cambs Hall at South Cambridgeshire Hall on Friday, 30 July 2021
at 10.00 a.m.
Yours faithfully
Liz Watts
Chief Executive
The Council is committed to improving, for all members of the community,
access to its agendas and minutes. We try to take all circumstances into
account but, if you have any specific needs, please let us know, and we will do
what we can to help you.

Agenda
Pages
1.

Announcements

2.

Apologies for Absence
To receive Apologies for Absence from Cabinet members.

3.

Declarations of Interest

4.

Minutes of Previous Meeting

1-6

To authorise the Leader to sign the Minutes of the meeting held on
Monday, 5 July 2021 as a correct record.
5.

Public Questions
The deadline for receipt of public questions is noon on Friday, 23
July.
The Council’s scheme for public speaking at committee meetings may
be inspected here:
Public Questions at Committee Meetings

6.

Issues arising from the Scrutiny and Overview Committee
Democratic Services Contact Officer: Jonathan Malton 03450 450 500 democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk

7.

Actions Taken under the Chief Executive's Delegated
Powers

7-8

8.

Naming report on new town at Waterbeach

9 - 26

9.

Consultation on Location of Water Treatment Plant

27 - 38

10.

Cambridge South Railway Station

39 - 56

11.

A428 Black Cat to Caxton Gibbet Widening

57 - 72

Guidance Notes For Visitors to South Cambridgeshire Hall
While we try to make sure that you stay safe when visiting South Cambridgeshire Hall,
you also have a responsibility for your own safety, and that of others.
Security
When attending meetings in non-public areas of the Council offices you must report to
Reception, sign in, and at all times wear the Visitor badge issued. Before leaving the
building, please sign out and return the Visitor badge to Reception.
Public seating in meeting rooms is limited. For further details contact Democratic
Services on 03450 450 500 or e-mail democratic.services@scambs.gov.uk
Emergency and Evacuation
In the event of a fire, a continuous alarm will sound. Leave the building using the
nearest escape route; from the Council Chamber or Mezzanine viewing gallery this is
via the staircase just outside the door. Go to the assembly point at the far side of the
staff car park opposite the staff entrance
Do not use the lifts to leave the building. If you are unable to use stairs by yourself, the
emergency staircase landings have fire refuge areas, which give protection for a
minimum of 1.5 hours. Press the alarm button and wait for help from Council fire
wardens or the Fire and Rescue Service.
Do not re-enter the building until the officer in charge or the Fire and Rescue Service
confirms that it is safe to do so.
First Aid
If you feel unwell or need first aid, please alert a member of staff.
Access for People with Disabilities
We are committed to improving, for all members of the community, access to our
agendas and minutes. We try to take all circumstances into account but, if you have
any specific needs, please let us know, and we will do what we can to help you. The
Council Chamber is accessible to wheelchair users. Infra-red hearing assistance
systems are available in the Council Chamber and viewing gallery. To use these, you
must sit in sight of the infra-red transmitter and wear a ‘neck loop’, which can be used
with a hearing aid switched to the ‘T’ position. If your hearing aid does not have the ‘T’
position facility then earphones are also available and can be used independently. You

can get both neck loops and earphones from Reception.
Toilets
Public toilets are available on each floor of the building next to the lifts. These include
facilities for disabled people.
Recording of Business and Use of Mobile Phones
We are open and transparent about how we make decisions. Public meetings are
webcast and are also recorded, but we allow recording, filming and photography at
Council, Cabinet and other meetings, which members of the public can attend, so long
as proceedings at the meeting are not disrupted. We also allow the use of social media
during meetings to bring Council issues to the attention of a wider audience. To
minimise disturbance to others attending the meeting, please switch your phone or
other mobile device to silent / vibrate mode.
Banners, Placards and similar items
You are not allowed to bring into, or display at, any public meeting any banner, placard,
poster or other similar item. If you do so, the Chair will suspend the meeting until such
items are removed.
Disturbance by Public
If a member of the public interrupts proceedings at a meeting, the Chair will warn the
person concerned. If they continue to interrupt, the Chair will order their removal from
the meeting room. If there is a general disturbance in any part of the meeting room
open to the public, the Chair may call for that part to be cleared. The meeting will be
suspended until order has been restored.
Smoking
Since 1 July 2008, South Cambridgeshire District Council has operated a Smoke Free
Policy. No one can smoke at any time within the Council offices, or in the car park or
other grounds forming part of those offices.
Food and Drink
Until the lifting of Covid restrictions, no vending machines are available. Bottled water is
available for attendees at meetings.

This page is left blank intentionally.

Agenda Item 4
South Cambridgeshire District Council
Minutes of a meeting of the Cabinet held on
Monday, 5 July 2021 at 10.00 a.m.
Present:

Councillor Bridget Smith (Leader of Council)
Councillor Neil Gough (Deputy Leader - Strategic Planning & Transport
and Transformation & Projects)

Councillors:

John Batchelor
Bill Handley
Dr. Tumi Hawkins
Brian Milnes
John Williams

Lead Cabinet Member for Housing
Lead Cabinet Member for Community Resilience
Lead Cabinet Member for Planning Policy and
Delivery
Lead Cabinet Member for Environmental
Services and Licensing
Lead Cabinet Member for Finance

Officers in attendance in the Council Chamber for all or part of the meeting:
Aaron Clarke
Democratic Services Officer
Rebecca Dobson
Democratic Services Manager
Stephen Kelly
Joint Director of Planning and Economic
Development
Jonathan Malton
Cabinet Support Officer
Rory McKenna
Monitoring Officer
Tom Smith
Democratic Services Assistant
Liz Watts
Chief Executive
Officers in attendance remotely for all or part of the meeting:
Anne Ainsworth
Chief Operating Officer
Christian Brady
Historic Environment Team Leader
Lesley Beevers
Service Manager (People Protection and
Planning)
Peter Campbell
Head of Housing
John Cornell
Natural Environment Team Leader
Jane Green
Built and Natural Environment Manager
Peter Maddock
Head of Finance
Jeff Membery
Head of Transformation
Joanne Preston
Principal Urban Designer
Ian Senior
Scrutiny and Governance Adviser
Councillors Anna Bradnam, Grenville Chamberlain, Dr. Claire Daunton, Pippa Heylings,
Bunty Waters and Eileen Wilson were in attendance remotely.

1.

Announcements
There were no announcements.

2.

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Peter McDonald and

Page 1

Cabinet

Monday, 5 July 2021

Judith Rippeth sent apologies for absence.
3.

Declarations of Interest
Councillor Bridget Smith, Leader of the Council, and John Williams, Lead
Cabinet Member for Finance, declared an interest in relation to Item 9, Private
Sector Housing Policy (Environmental Health; Enforcement and Licencing), both
being landlords for properties within the district.
Councillor Bill Handley, Lead Cabinet Member for Community resilience and
Health, also declared an interest in relation to Item 9, Private Sector Housing
Policy (Environmental Health; Enforcement and Licencing), being a landlord for a
property outside the district.

4.

Minutes of Previous Meeting
Cabinet authorised the Leader to sign, as a correct record, the public version of
the Minutes of the meeting held on Monday, 24 May 2021.

5.

Public Questions
No public questions received.

6.

Issues arising from the Scrutiny and Overview Committee
Cabinet received and noted a report from Councillor Grenville Chamberlain,
Chair of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee, and Councillor Judith Rippeth,
Vice-Chair of the Scrutiny and Overview Committee, informing it about the
discussions at, and recommendations from the Committee’s meetings held on
Tuesday, 20 April and Tuesday, 22 June 2021.
The report related to:



7.

Quarter 4 Performance
Private Sector Housing Policy

Actions Taken under the Chief Executive's Delegated Powers
Cabinet received and noted a report relating to the actions taken under the
Chief Executive’s Delegated Powers:



8.

Protocol for attendance at physical meetings held before 21 June 2021,
issued on Tuesday, 18 May 2021
Protocol for attendance at physical meetings held during COVID-19
continued restrictions, issued on Tuesday, 15 June 2021

2020-2021 Quarter Four Performance Report
Cabinet received the 2020-2021 Quarter Four Performance Report, Councillor
Neil Gough, the Deputy Leader, introduced the report and updated the Cabinet

Page 2

Cabinet

Monday, 5 July 2021

on the performance of the Council during the last three months. It was noted the
Contact Centre had a slight reduction in the number of calls handled during
March, and there was an overall slow response to formal complaints.
The Deputy Leader then invited the other Members of the Cabinet to discuss the
performance of their respective service areas. Councillor John Batchelor, Lead
Cabinet Member for Housing, mentioned the low percentage of tenants satisfied
with responsive repairs and higher average days to re-let all housing stock. The
Lead Cabinet Member assured the Cabinet that the issues were being
addressed within the department.
Councillor Dr. Tumi Hawkins, Lead Cabinet Member for Planning was pleased
with the increase in planning applications being processed but acknowledged the
slow response to land charges.
Councillor Brian Milnes, Lead Cabinet Member for Environmental Services and
Licencing highlighted the Waste Disposal team had continued to exceed their
targets during the fourth quarter.
After a short discussion, Councillor Bridget Smith said she was pleased with the
Council’s progress during the pandemic, and thanked Officers for their continuing
work. The debate was then closed, and Cabinet:
Reviewed and noted the KPI results and comments at Appendix A and progress
against Business Plan actions at Appendix B.
9.

Private Sector Housing Policy (Environmental Health: Enforcement and
Licensing)
Cabinet received the Private Sector Housing Policy, Councillor Brian Milnes,
Lead Cabinet Member for Environmental Services and Licencing, introduced the
report, noting the importance of the policy, which would ensure the Council would
follow the guidance from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government, that it would enforce the powers fairly and enabled the landlords
and letting agents within the district to understand how the council might use
these powers.
Councillor Grenville Chamberlain, Chair of the Scrutiny and Overview
Committee, noted the potential issues if there were a lack of staff required to
enforce the rules. Councillor Brian Milnes responded that current vacancies had
been filled ahead of this policy being brought to Cabinet.
After a short discussion, Councillor Bridget Smith closed the debate, and
Cabinet:
a) Approved the Private Sector Housing Policy, to ensure the Council
follows guidance from the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local
Government, to tackle substandard conditions in the private rented sector.
b) Delegated authority to the Head of Shared Waste and Environment to
make minor amendments, in consultation with the Lead Cabinet Member

Page 3

Cabinet

Monday, 5 July 2021

for Environmental Services and Licensing.
10.

Officer Delegations for Infrastructure Projects
Cabinet received the Officer Delegation for Infrastructure Projects report,
Councillor Dr. Tumi Hawkins, Lead Cabinet Member for Planning Policy and
Delivery, introduced the report, mentioning the numerous infrastructure projects
taking place with the District, and the Council’s requirement to respond to the
public consultations.
After a short discussion, Councillor Bridget Smith closed the debate, and
Cabinet:
Noted that the Joint Director of Planning and Economic Development
has the authority for providing responses on behalf of South
Cambridgeshire District Council relating to specific stages of the
statutory process for infrastructure proposals being promoted through
the Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects scheme and Transport
and Works Act.

11.

Conservation Area Review Programme including approach to Longstanton
Conservation Area Review
Cabinet received the Conservation Area Review Programme. Councillor Dr. Tumi
Hawkins, Lead Cabinet Member for Planning Policy and Delivery, introduced the
report, noting the importance of the review, and the historic areas within South
Cambridgeshire. Councillor Dr. Tumi Hawkins mentioned the Council would
continue to consult with the Parish Councils and the local Members during each
review.
After a short discussion, Councillor Bridget Smith closed the debate, and
Cabinet:
a) Endorsed the criteria and approach for the rolling programme of
Conservation Area Appraisals and Management Plans reviews, with the
programme to be reviewed bi-annually.
b) Confirmed that it will not prioritise a review the Longstanton Conservation
Area at this time.

12.

Biodiversity Supplementary Planning Document
Cabinet received the Biodiversity Supplementary Planning Document. Councillor
Dr. Tumi Hawkins, Lead Cabinet Member for Planning Policy and Delivery,
introduced the report, highlighting the Council’s commitment to Biodiversity with
this report, and previously approved Doubling Nature Strategy, and the continued
engagement with the local community. Councillor Dr. Tumi Hawkins then
thanked the Officers who worked on the document, and the collaboration with the
Climate and Environment Advisory Committee.
The Leader invited Councillor Pippa Heylings, the Chair of the Climate and

Page 4

Cabinet

Monday, 5 July 2021

Environment Advisory Committee, to comment on Supplementary Planning
Document, and to summarise the Committee’s response.
Councillor Pippa Heylings reiterated the Committee’s discussion of the report,
expressing support for the Supplementary Planning Document, and the
importance of the nonbinding targets that the Council has set within the report.
Councillor Pippa Heylings also mentioned this SPD was the first for a Council
within England.
Councillor Brian Milnes, Lead Cabinet member for Environmental Services and
Licencing agreed the report continued the Council’s commitment to tackle
Climate Change.
Councillor Anna Bradnam welcomed the report, and said she was pleased the
Council was continuing performance for tackling the climate emergency.
After a short discussion, Councillor Bridget Smith closed the debate, noting the
report would return to Cabinet in December 2021 following the end of the public
consultation, and Cabinet:
Agreed to support the passage of this Supplementary Planning Document
through this process to the next phase, which is public consultation prior to its
return to this committee for review and adoption in late 2021.
13.

Review of the Design Review Service
Cabinet received the Review of the Design Review Service report. Councillor Dr.
Tumi Hawkins, Lead Cabinet Member for Planning Policy and Delivery,
introduced the report, which was the first time the Design Review Service had
undergone a review, and would support improvements to the work of the team.
Councillor John Williams, Lead Cabinet Member for Finance, said he hoped the
Design Review Service would continue to consider the feedback from the Parish
Councils. Councillor Neil Gough, the Deputy Leader, supported the report,
requesting the Cabinet should also implement the recommendations from the
report. The Joint Director of Planning and Economic Development agreed with
the updated recommendation.
Councillor John Batchelor, Lead Cabinet Member for Housing, offered praise for
the review, but was hopeful the Planning Committee could defer some applicants
to the Design Review Service. The Joint Director of Planning and Economic
Development responded that the Design Review Service would be part of the
process, but further Government legislation would be required for all applications
to be deferred.
Councillor Dr. Claire Daunton said she was pleased with the report and
commended the continuing work of the team but requested the possibility that all
developers within South Cambridgeshire be encouraged to use the service. The
Joint Director of Planning and Economic Development said he would feed back
the Members’ comments to the team.

Page 5

Cabinet

Monday, 5 July 2021

After a short discussion, Councillor Bridget Smith closed the debate, thanked
Officers for their ongoing work in the team and commended their award-winning
status. Then, Cabinet:
a) Agreed to replace the Design Enabling Panel to create the Greater
Cambridge Design Review Panel and approve the Terms of Reference
(including charges) set out at Appendix B from 1 January 2022.
b) Agreed to grant delegated authority to the Joint Director of Planning and
Economic Development in consultation with the Lead Cabinet Member for
Planning Policy and Delivery to make minor changes to the Terms of
Reference set out at Appendix B.
c) Noted the findings and to implement the recommendations from Urban
Design Learning set out in Appendix A.
d) Noted the Milestones for Implementing the GCDRP set out in Appendix D.

The Meeting ended at
11:23

Page 6

Agenda Item 7

Report to:

Cabinet

Lead Officer:

Liz Watts, Chief Executive

30 July 2021

Actions taken under Chief Executive’s delegated
powers
Executive Summary
1. As required by the Council’s Constitution, this report informs Cabinet of actions
taken under the Chief Executive’s delegated powers.

Key Decision
2. No

Recommendations
3. To note the actions taken under the Chief Executive’s delegation (delegation 4.4,
Table 7, Part 3 of the Constitution). Details of these actions are set out in
appendix A.

Reasons for Recommendations
4. To advise the Cabinet of the decisions taken under the Chief Executive’s
emergency delegated powers as required by Delegation No 4.4, Table 7, Part 3 of
the Constitution.

Report Author:
Jonathan Malton – Cabinet Support Officer
Telephone: 07716 959184

Page 7

Appendix A

Date of
Decision

Subject

Monday, 14 July National Lockdown Business Support
2021
Policy – Growth Fund Policy
(Additional Restrictions Support Grant
Tranche 2)

Background

Local authorities are responsible for delivering funding support to eligible
businesses in response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Page 8

A second tranche of Additional Restrictions Grant funding has been
announced by government, to be spent from 1st July 2021. In order to
formalise arrangements for carrying out this function in line with
government guidance, the Chief Executive, in exercise of the emergency
delegation in paragraph 4.4 of the Scheme of Delegation in Part 3 of the
Constitution, and the emergency delegation approved by the Leader of
the Council on 30 March 2020, authorising the Chief Executive to
exercise all executive functions, or to authorise specified officers to
exercise any such functions, and after consultation with the Leader of
the Council:
1. Approves the Growth Fund Policy (Additional Restrictions Support
Grant Tranche 2), including details of how grant schemes will be
administered to support local businesses who are looking to scale and
grow within the region post-pandemic.
2. Authorises the Chief Finance Office to approve future individual
discretionary grants for small businesses, as set out within the policy.
Due to the Covid 19 emergency and the need for the Council to
administer these grants in line with Government guidance and to support
local businesses impacted by the pandemic and subsequent restrictions.

Agenda Item 8

Report to:

Cabinet

Lead Cabinet Member:

Cllr Bill Handley, Lead Cabinet Member for
Community Resilience, Health and Wellbeing

Lead Officer:

Jeff Membery, Head of Transformation

30 July 2021

Waterbeach New Town Naming Report: PostConsultation
Key Decision
1. No.

Recommendations
2. It is recommended that Cabinet notes the developers’ consultation report at
Appendix A, affirms the developers’ consultation process and agrees the
outcomes of the developer-led consultation which concludes that “Waterbeach”
should be the name of the new settlement in Waterbeach Parish, and that this will
be inclusive of the existing village.
Reasons for Recommendations
3. A report was brought before Cabinet on 22 March 2021 setting out the process by

which the developers of the new town at Waterbeach would conduct a
consultation into the naming of the new town. This consultation has now
concluded, with their findings reported at Appendix A. Cabinet is asked to affirm
its support for the process undertaken and either agree or reject the
recommendations.
4. No significant alternatives were presented through the consultation process.

Details
5. The table below sets out the developers’ consultation commitments that were
agreed at the March meeting of Cabinet:

Stage of
process

Dates

Detail

Page 9

Stage 1
Review

1 April – 12 May
(6 weeks)
13 May – 26 May
(2 week)

Stage 2
27 May – 7 July
(6 weeks)
Final
review &
submission

July Cabinet TBC

Consultation on name of town and on U&C wider naming
strategy
Review of submissions and formulation of preferred
options
Consultation on preferred options including a number of
targeted workshops with 3 key stakeholder groups:
 Parish, County and District Councillors
 Heritage Groups
 Youth Representatives
Review of feedback and recommendations put forward to
Cabinet for final decision

Stage 1
6. Consultation booklets were sent out to circa 3000 homes in Waterbeach,
Landbeach, Chittering, Horningsea and Clayhithe.120 responses were received.
7. In addition to the door drop, the consultation was marketed through the
developers’ regular newsletters, a dedicated webpage and social media – twitter
and local Facebook groups.
8. Two webinars promoted by the developers were due to take place as part of the
stage 1 consultation. These were cancelled due to lack of uptake. The few
residents that did sign-up were followed up with individually.
9. Following the conclusion of stage 1, a report was drafted analysing the results,
which was used as a basis for discussion in the stage 2 workshops as per the
agreed process above.
10. Headline findings from the stage 1 consultation:
10.1.

10.2.
10.3.

By a small margin, most respondents answering the relevant question
favour an approach which recognises the existing village and new
development as one place (53%). Of those supporting the ‘single
settlement’ approach the majority answering the relevant question
(76%) favour it being named Waterbeach.
Of those preferring a “whole place” approach, most (87%) favoured
identifying the village as Waterbeach Village.
The name “North Waterbeach” or “Waterbeach North” for the new
development was the most common alternative. Only 7 of the 120
respondents suggested this. Without any significant alternatives, the
developers agreed to use the workshops as a sounding board for the
data collected in stage 1 and forego any wider consultation.

11. Cabinet is asked to note the majority support for the name "Waterbeach Village"
for the existing settlement. Considering any adjustments to the name of the
existing village was not covered by the scope of the consultation. However,
following the conclusion of the naming of the new settlement, the local community
may choose to consider this further.

Page 10

Stage 2
12. Engagement in stage two was limited to workshops with selected groups. Wider
engagement, for example with those who made comment in phase one, was not
carried out by the developers. The justification for this approach is that the first
stage did not present any significant support for any alternatives to the name
‘Waterbeach’ and therefore no “preferred options” could be presented.
13. Workshops took place on 14 June (Councillors), 16 June (Waterbeach Heritage
Group) and 23 June (Youth Representatives), as per the agreed process. These
workshops were designed to interrogate the data collected from the first stage of
consultation. Each group corroborated the findings from stage 1 and agreed that
Waterbeach is the most appropriate name for the settlement.
14. The Councillor workshop (made up of representatives from the Waterbeach
Parish Council, District and County Councillors), Heritage Group and youth
representatives noted the number of responses the developers received and
concluded that the issue of naming the town must not be a key issue amongst
residents.

Options
15. Cabinet could:
15.1. note the developers’ consultation report at Appendix A, affirm the
developers’ consultation process and agree with the outcome of the
consultation process that “Waterbeach” should be the name of the new
settlement in Waterbeach Parish, and that this will be inclusive of the
existing village.
15.2. reject the findings of the consultation, giving reasons as appropriate, and
suggest an alternative course of action for naming the new settlement.

Implications
16. In the writing of this report, taking into account financial, legal, staffing, risk,
equality and diversity, climate change, and any other key issues, the following
implications have been considered:Legal
17. The process by which the developers conducted this consultation was designed
with significant input from the 3C Legal service.

Page 11

Risks/Opportunities
18. There is an opportunity to resolve the name of this new settlement ahead of the
first residential schemes coming forward. This will expedite the marketing of new
homes on the site and incidentally support housing delivery in this area.
19. If a name is not adopted at this stage, there is a risk of the new town’s identity not
being secured, and this uncertainty could affect the marketing of new homes by
prospective housebuilders which in turn effects the SCDC housing trajectory.
Equality and Diversity
20. The consultation undertaken by the developers has been robust and inclusive.
The inclusion of a mail drop to every home proves that every effort was made to
include all residents within the immediate and surrounding area. Each
consultation document included a freepost questionnaire. Supplementing this
was a strong drive online along with other digital communication methods.
Consultation responses
21. This paper presents the results of a consultation run by the developers with the
process laid out at paragraph 4. Results and findings of this consultation are
detailed at Appendix A.

Alignment with Council Priority Areas
A modern and caring Council
22. The naming of the new town has long been discussed within the Waterbeach

community since the area was first allocated in the local plan. The council is
delivering on their promise to tackle these types of local issues by working with
stakeholders, developers and residents to resolve the naming of this important
new settlement.

Background Papers
Waterbeach New Town Naming, March 2021 –
https://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s121302/Naming%20Report%20for%20
new%20town%20at%20Waterbeach%20220321%20RC.pdf
Naming the New Town, June 2003 http://moderngov/documents/s2170/New%20Town%20Name.pdf
Naming the New Town, Sept 2003 http://moderngov/documents/s1497/Naming%20of%20New%20Town.pdf

Page 12

Appendices
Appendix A: Waterbeach New Town Naming Consultation Summary

Report Author:
Ryan Coetsee – Development Officer, Sustainable Communities and Wellbeing
Telephone: (01954) 713 461

Page 13

This page is left blank intentionally.

Appendix A
Waterbeach - Naming Consultation
Results Overview and Recommendations
1.

Introduction and Summary

The public consultation has now been completed on the question of naming Waterbeach
New Town and its components parts.
There were two distinct parts to this consultation and two related questions:
1. The first part related to the naming of the new settlement which has thus far,
through the planning process, been called Waterbeach New Town.
2. The second part related to the naming of places within the new development,
including the neighbourhoods, streets, public squares and parks. The consultation
exercise in relation to this matter adopted a more open invitation to establish an
approach of these and character areas and to help to begin to assemble a ‘bank’ of
possible names and useful references to inform and guide the naming of places
over the years ahead. For now, the consultation material focussed on the Airfield
and Barracks, where development is underway, with the scope to expand that
eastwards as development moves forward.
The consultation exercise was underpinned by a report examining the issues around
naming and setting out approaches, considerations and - for the second part - suggested
character areas, themes and examples from current research.
The consultation was carried out in two phases, with an open consultation in phase 1
asking the questions above, and then 3 workshops held in phase 2 to refine the feedback
from the first phase with 3 key groups which represented the past, the present and the
future of Waterbeach. This report pulls together the feedback from both phases of the
consultation and includes the final recommendation.
The results of all stages of the consultation were consistent in their conclusions, which are
that there is a majority consensus that Waterbeach New Town should retain the name of
Waterbeach, with the existing village, the Barracks and the land to the East all being within
the parish boundary and continuing to be named Waterbeach. Notwithstanding that, there
is a discreet identity and character of the existing Village which it is important to retain,
and therefore that the existing built form of the village of Waterbeach, should be
demarcated and known as Waterbeach Village. The public realm enhancements planned
through S106 and additional collaborative working can be progressed with the Parish
Council to refine the detailed approaches to how this is implemented.

Page 15

The consultation also enabled a positive response to the approach of naming streets,
public areas etc through a character area approach. It enabled gathering of information,
suggestions and refinements for the character areas to ensuring they fully reflected the
history and ecology around them.
The sections below set out:
 Phase 1 consultation process
 Phase 1 results and analysis
 Phase 2 consultation process
 Phase 2 workshops feedback summaries
 Overall recommendation

2.

Phase 1: wider consultation

I.

Process and response

The consultation was targeted toward existing residents within Waterbeach and its
immediate environs. The following approach was taken to publicising the consultation
event:







Door-drop of the full consultation document to each home in Waterbeach,
Landbeach, Chittering, Horningsea and Clayhithe.
Summary and promotion of consultation in newsletter door-dropped to same
villages.
Promotion with links by e-newsletter for those subscribed to the
Urban&Civic/Waterbeach Barracks website for updates.
Promotion on Twitter, with repeat and reminder tweets covering heritage, naming
and community themes to provoke debate and link to consultation.
Press release to local media, and coverage in the Cambridge Independent.
Posts on the local Facebook group.

Responses included very useful and interesting contributions, as well as views on the key
questions posed, particularly in relation to the Part 2 Consultation Questionnaire. However,
the consultation did not generate a large response. In total, there were 120 respondents
which represents a small percentage of the total population of the village (around 5,500)
and the total number of households notified (over 3,000 households), with a total
population of over 8,500 people. The breakdown of responses is shown below:
Consultees responded:



by filling out and returning the online questionnaires (92 respondents)
by retuning the freepost questionnaires (26 respondents)

Page 16

Page | 2


II.

via email (2 respondents)

Key Feedback

Part 1 - Naming the Settlement – Results
The whole settlement
Do you agree that Waterbeach (the existing village) and incoming
community (to be brought forward on the Waterbeach Barracks, Airfield
and New Town East, should be identified together as one place (as a
single settlement and destination)?
If you answered yes to Question 1a above, should that settlement be
called Waterbeach?
The existing village
If the settlement, as a whole, is identified as one place, do you agree that
it is important to distinguish the existing Waterbeach Village as a defined
part of the settlement (i.e. an identifiable area within the settlement).

53% YES

76% YES

87% YES

If you answered ‘Yes’ to questions 2a, is adopting ‘Waterbeach Village’ as 80% YES
the name the best approach?
By a small margin, the majority of respondents answering the relevant question favour an
approach which recognises the existing village and new development as one place (53%).
Of those supporting the ‘single settlement’ approach the majority answering the relevant
question (76%) favour it being named Waterbeach.
Those favouring a clear distinction in naming between the village and new development
offered a variety of alternative names or references. Denny, Water, Beach, Fen, Winfold
all recur in the alternatives offered, in various combinations (for example, Northbeach,
Fenbeach, Denny End, New Beach, Windbeach). No single alternative emerges with
significant support; North Waterbeach or Waterbeach North is the alternative that is offered
most often, but still only by 7 consultees.
It is also noteworthy that while some respondents underline the need to preserve
‘Waterbeach’ for the village (unchanged) others highlight the importance of Waterbeach
being attached to the new development but distinguished by an extension of the name.
Some propose distinguishing adjectives to add to Waterbeach: for example north, old,
new, village, town, great. Examples include Waterbeach North, Waterbeach New Town,
Waterbeach Cum Denny.

Page 17

Page | 3

If a single settlement approach is adopted, the vast majority of respondents answering the
relevant question (87%) favour the village being distinguished and 80% favour
‘Waterbeach Village’ as the appropriate nomenclature.
Of those that did not favour this approach, and chose to expand upon their reasoning,
there were a number of observations. One recurring theme in a number of responses was
that it is the new development that should get the new name, not the existing village.

Part 1 – Naming the Settlement - Analysis
The scale of response to the consultation has not provided a firm basis upon which to draw
conclusions which might be regarded as representative of the existing community. The
limited response can be interpreted as an indicator that naming is not a major issue for
most existing residents. Furthermore, while the majority of detailed comments were
negative, the voting did support the name of Waterbeach as a single settlement. However,
U&C and RLW are keen not to dismiss the opinions of those that do feel strongly about
the matter, especially as the comments suggest highly polarised opinions.
A limited response does present one advantage, and that is the ability to consider each
individual return. Many individual comments are very considered and insightful. There is
strong sentiment expressed by some focused upon impending change and wanting to
protect their village and distance it from the ‘new’ community. The undercurrent of injustice
at the ‘requisitioning’ of the village name for the new town is notable, although it remains
a minority view. Nonetheless it cannot be dismissed lightly. Others suggest that in decades
to come no-one will distinguish between old and new. It is important to all parties therefore
that decisions taken now support community cohesion and good neighbourliness – both
for the existing as well as incoming residents.
The majority consensus, such as it is, would suggest:



naming the enlarged settlement Waterbeach
the name ‘Waterbeach’ to associate with the existing and the planned.

Aspects noted through the comments include:




an understanding that residents value ‘village’ life and want to protect it;
the character and identity of ‘the village’ is regarded as precious;
but renaming the historic village as Waterbeach Village would be resisted by some,
as it is changing the existing, rather than making the new different.

Aspects reflected by U&C and RLW in analysing the results include:

Page 18

Page | 4







The intention to carefully control car access and movement into the historic village,
is aimed at protecting the historic village centre, and that could be part of a strategy
to create distinction, but not separation.
Previous consultation has also revealed that many existing residents desire access
to the amenities coming forward within the new development, and while the historic
centre of the village is currently the centre of focus, the future development will
introduce new nodes for community activity (around the station quarter, the lake
and the town centre area).
While the SPD distinguishes a Town Centre, the design work incorporates different
local community areas and centres / character areas and quarters. The historic
village core will continue to be a distinctive ‘centre’. It seems most likely that
functions will evolve around different locations which people use according to their
activities and networks.

It was felt that the workshops provided a helpful format to explore these aspects, to
reconcile some of the conflicting views and understand better how a future approach can
respond to the views shared.

Part 2 – Naming the component parts of the new settlement – Results
and Analysis
The Part 2 questionnaire has generated some hugely valuable references for place
naming and special thanks must be extended to those residents who have taken the time
to share stories, including the highly personal recollections of family members with long
associations with the area, or have provided carefully recorded and researched accounts/
records associated with the farming, military, and early settlement activities at
Waterbeach.
Information is being collated and will be published as the information is refined and falls
into place with a coherent strategy. A Waterbeach Stories platform is being set up online
to ensure people can continue to share thoughts and views and help shape both the
resource and the heritage strategy and approach going forward.
It is notable that the range of stories and emotion connected to this second part, seemed
to U&C / RLW, to reinforce the view that bonds across the area are strong and the historic
connections, evident through the centuries should continue with the approach to naming
– reconnecting ties that were severed by the airfield (removing the agricultural use that
remained on the Eastern side) or alternatively reconnecting ties made as an airfield and
barracks to the village, which were lost when the barracks closed.
This will be further explored through the workshops.

3. Phase 2 – Workshops

Page 19

Page | 5

i. Workshop approach
3 workshops and a school project were then held to carry out further exploration of the
results and analysis. These included:
-

The past – how the history informs the naming approach - 16 June, 2-4pm
Waterbeach Heritage Group, expanded to include representatives from 514
Squadron Association and 39 Royal Engineer Regiment veterans.

-

The present: how do the current residents view the connections with the New
Town – 14 June 6-8pm
Parish, District and County Councillors as the democratic representatives of the
village and local area.

-

The Future: how the young people of Waterbeach feel about the identity of
the village and the New Town.
The Primary School collated views from classes in response to a video and shared
plans, over a 2 week period, sending through compiled responses from the
Headteacher.
A workshop was held with Waterbeach Action for Youth on 23 June, 7pm.

The format for these sessions is set out below – with each workshop taking on a slightly
different but complementary format to support the themes highlighted above.
-

Heritage workshop:
o Presentation of the consultation responses
o Discussion:
 How was the area of the New Town regarded historically?
 How should that be reflected in the naming approach?
 How do the character areas reflect historical uses and how should
that influence naming approaches to streets and other spaces?
o Conclusion

-

Present workshop:
o Presentation of the consultation responses
o Discussion
 How do we interpret the connection expressed through this feedback?
 How do we respond to the desire for distinction and village identity?
 What does that mean in the naming approach?
 What does that mean in designing access and wayfinding?
 How is this reflected in historic approaches to street naming and
naming of public spaces?

Page 20

Page | 6

o Conclusion
-

Youth workshop:
o Presentation of consultation responses
o Discussion
 What do you think makes Waterbeach special?
 Will the area feel more like a village or a town when the new
development is built?
 Would you use some of the new facilities?
 Would you move into one of the new homes there when you’re older?
 Do you think the new town will be a part of Waterbeach or something
distinct?
 What does that mean in naming approach?

ii. Workshop Outcomes

Parish, District and County Councillors Workshop 14 June 2021
On 14 June Urban&Civic (U&C) and RLW Estates (RLW) hosted a workshop with Parish,
District and County Councillors as the democratic representatives of the village and local
area. The objective of the workshop was to look at the present: how do the current
residents view the connections with the New Town.
The session enabled the local representatives to share the views of current residents of
Waterbeach and crucially, the wider feeling of its relationship to the New Town. The
workshop proved vital for establishing a consensus for the approach to naming the New
Town.
A significant proportion of the workshop was focussed upon the potential for a distinction
between Waterbeach and the New Town, as two places with separate identities and
names. The consensus view was that this should be avoided, and as a way of achieving
this, the naming of the new settlement should avoid reference to “new”.
Discussions reflected both identity and access to services and facilities, with a clear
message that residents will want to and need good access to what is coming forward and
families and friendships will make strong ties inevitable.
Alongside the above overarching principle, there was a preference for the existing village
to be known as ‘Waterbeach Village’ as part of the larger expanded Waterbeach. This
supports the distinct identity and character it has, reflects the current culture, and would
enable organic evolution as the new community establishes.

Page 21

Page | 7

The intention behind this approach is to avoid detaching the connection between the new
settlement or the existing village of Waterbeach, as in the long term it could be considered
one place – examples were given of an undesirable scenario where you might have sports
teams or community clubs both bearing the name Waterbeach in opposition to each other
rather than as part of one community. But to also enable – like the Milton Keynes Village
example – the village identity to remain in the long term as an essential part of the identity
of the existing community.
Attendees at the workshop supported the general approach to applying character areas to
the new settlement, the themes of agriculture, historic connections and the military were
identified as a good way of defining discrete local areas. Attendees made reference to
specific place names that are existing and could be incorporated into the new settlement,
these included: Soldiers Hill, Snake Pit and Denny Abbey.
The overall conclusion at the workshop was that the name Waterbeach should apply to
the village and the New Town as a whole in order to promote a sense of integration and a
collective identity.
The outcome of the workshop was that U&C and RLW would meet with the group again
following completion of the round of workshops to discuss how the naming strategy has
progressed.

Heritage Group Workshop 16 June 2021
On 16 June U&C and RLW Estates hosted a workshop with the Waterbeach Heritage
Group, plus representatives from 514 Squadron Association and 39 Royal Engineer
Regiment veterans to discuss how history should influence the approach to naming.
The focus of the discussion at the workshop was upon the historical references made in
the original Naming Strategy Report which could be used to inform the names of Character
Areas, or wider local naming of streets, places and key civic buildings within the New
Town. Generally, the group was pleased to see a range of time period covered. However,
they suggested there was too much emphasis on the military heritage of the area. Where
military references are made this should focus on everyone who has served rather than
selecting high ranking officials, this could be achieved through using crests, notable tours
or selecting individuals who are particularly unique (e.g., the first commissioned female
officer), as well as those who gave their lives during the conflict.
In relation to the Part A of the consultation, the issue of the overall name for the New Town,
the Heritage Group reached the consensus view that the name for the new settlement and
the existing village should allow continuity and not introduce a new place name per se.
The agreed position was that on balance, consistent with the conclusion of the workshop
with Parish, District and County members, the existing village should be known as

Page 22

Page | 8

‘Waterbeach Village’ and the New Town and existing village as a whole should be known
as Waterbeach.
The group discussed the existing villages character and how this will relate to the new
town; whether it will be considered one place or whether it would become two distinct
areas. Governance of the new settlement was cited as a method for achieving a united
place (i.e., incorporating the new residents into the current local community) and it was
acknowledged that naming would be significant for this also.
It was noted that the physical integration of the existing village and the New Town would
be a key issue to ensure that they can be considered as a whole integrated place. The
Group acknowledged that a careful balance will have to applied to create an inclusive
place for new residents and those in the existing village.
The group discussed the tendency to apply a dichotomy of “old” and “new” to the existing
place and the future new settlement, there was a feeling that this was an unhelpful
distinction and didn’t reflect the depth of history in the area – Waterbeach long predates
the Barracks and even the village in its current form. This view also precipitates some
existing challenges in the Village, where newer residents in homes to the north of the
village have said they do not always feel part of the historic village.
Further to this the group were receptive to the ideas of naming Character Areas within the
development to recognise the history of the site. However, the Group recommended that
the naming of proposed Character Areas should be refined further to incorporate a wider
breadth of history: Roman, Tudor and references to agricultural heritage / landownership
(legacy of the Enclosures Act c.1800).
During the workshop there was commitment to a wider responsibility for recording the
history of the area, in view of this a Waterbeach Stories platform is being set up on the
Waterbeach Barracks website to ensure people can continue to share thoughts and views
and help shape both the resource and the heritage strategy and approach going forward.

Youth Workshop 23 June 2021
On 23rd June 2021, U&C and RLW hosted a youth workshop on the naming strategy for
Waterbeach New Town, with support from Waterbeach Action for Youth. The session
engaged with 30 young people ranged in age from 10 – 15. The workshop was split into
two halves.
The first half was a discussion about the new town and young people’s hopes and
aspirations for it and a discussion of what is good and bad about Waterbeach Village as it
is now. Generally, respondents were positive about the character of Waterbeach citing
the parks, green spaces and wildlife in particular.

Page 23

Page | 9

The second half focused on the naming strategy for the New Town. This discussion
focused around whether the New Town should be considered part of Waterbeach or
should be considered a new place with a new name. The consensus on this second
question was that the New Town should be part of the existing Waterbeach settlement.
Some young people raised the idea of having the existing village be known as Waterbeach
village or separated in some other informal way. Most felt that they consider the land as it
is at the moment to be part of Waterbeach.
The young people were asked to consider alternative names for the new Town, with no
real consensus for the whole or parts of it. Suggestions raised included calling part of the
New Town “Airbeach” to reflect being part of Waterbeach and Landbeach family and
reference the airfield use. Other ideas raised were Fenbeach, Firebeach, Skybeach and
Cambsbeach.
The overall conclusion was that the development and village, should together be
Waterbeach, but with the existing village retaining the Waterbeach Village identity.
Engagement with Waterbeach Community Primary School
In July 2021 the second aspect of the youth engagement was undertaken with Waterbeach
Community Primary School, where class teachers talked with the children about the new
settlement and came up with a variety of ideas for names of the settlement and for streets.
The comments were received from year 3 – year 6 classes.
Across the year groups there was a general feeling that the new settlement should be
distinguished from the existing area with its own name. However, there was less certainty
as to whether it would create an additional place or whether it would form part of one place
in combination with the existing village, overall the feedback suggests it should be
considered as one place: it has always been part of Waterbeach so should still be part of
/called Waterbeach.
The schoolchildren offered numerous examples of place names, streetnames, school
names and the names for park / play areas. A selection of these follows: New Greenfield,
Heron Primary/Secondary School, Eston Primary School, Cattle College, Air-Force Close,
Runway Primary, Denny Air, Beachway Town, Heron Hill, Crossbeach.

4. Conclusion
Overall, from this stage of the consultation process, in relation to Part A there is a clear
preference for the existing Waterbeach village and the New Town to be known collectively
as ‘Waterbeach’. Additionally, that there is a demarcation, for the existing village to retain
its village identity, and be defined as ‘Waterbeach Village’.
There is support for an approach which defines further character areas within the New
Town with distinct naming which reflects the history of the site. That this history should be
refined further to be more inclusive in terms of each period of history significant to the
history of the land, and to ensure wider representation of those who farmed, owned, lived
and served there.

Page 24

Page | 10

The consultation has provided further critical information to enrich the ‘name bank’ of
places which can be used to inform the naming of key places, open spaces and civic
buildings within the New Town. Finally, a range of actions and next steps have been
agreed to further inform and utilise this through ongoing engagement and dialogue with
key stakeholders.
Recommendation
Based on the outcome of this consultation, it is recommended that South Cambridgeshire
District Council Cabinet confirms the name of the new town, which includes the existing
village, as “Waterbeach”. It is further recommended it supports continued evolution of the
work between the developers and the Parish Council and community, to express the
identity of Waterbeach village as part of future public realm, signage and other projects
already underway.

Page 25

Page | 11

This page is left blank intentionally.

Agenda Item 9

Report to:

Cabinet

30 July 2021

Lead Cabinet Member:

Cllr Neil Gough - Deputy Leader and Lead Cabinet
Member for Strategic Planning and Transport and
Lead Cabinet Member for Transformation and
Projects

Lead Officer:

Stephen Kelly - Joint Director of Planning and
Economic Development

Cambridge Waste Water Treatment Plant Relocation (WWTPR)
Phase 2 Consultation Response - Development Consent Order
(DCO) process
Executive Summary
1. This report seeks endorsement of the approach to South Cambridgeshire District
Council’s response to the Cambridge Waste Water Treatment Plant Relocation
(CWWTPR) Phase 2 Consultation as part of a Development Consent Order
(DCO) process.
2. Anglian Water have recently commenced their second public consultation on the
proposal that closes on 18th August 2021. The statutory consultation is planned
for early 2022 prior to submission of a Development Consent Order application to
the Secretary of State.
3. The recommendation is to support the proposal in principle. However concerns
are raised about elements of the proposal, including traffic on local roads, the
landscape /design approach, technological solution, biodiversity net gain targets,
potential odour impact and connectively via sustainable forms of transport.

4. This officer recommendation is based on an assessment of the site constraints
and characteristics and ongoing consultation with relevant technical officers and
other stakeholders including the Cambridgeshire Quality Panel.

Key Decision
5. No.

Recommendations
6. It is recommended that Cabinet endorses the approach set out this report and
gives authority to Joint Director of Planning and Economic Development in

Page 27

consultation with the Deputy Leader and Lead Cabinet Member for Strategic
Planning and Transport and Lead Cabinet Member for Transformation and
Projects to amend the draft response to make reference to any additional issues
that may be identified from the ongoing consultation process and to submit the
response on behalf of the Council.
Reasons for Recommendations
7. Whilst the principle of the CWWTPR relocation is supported, there are some
important issues that the scheme needs to address in more detail to accord with
the South Cambridgeshire Local Plan 2018, the Cambridgeshire and
Peterborough Combined Authority Local Transport Plan (2020) and other
materials considerations.

Details

Background
8. Anglian Water are proposing to relocate the Waste Water Treatment Plant
(WWTP) currently on Cowley Road, Cambridge.
9. The relocation of the WWTP from Cowley Road enables the redevelopment of
the wider area of North East Cambridge delivering circa 8,000 homes and 20,000
jobs. The Greater Cambridge Shared Planning Service are in the process of
developing an Area Action Plan to guide development in the area over the next
20 years.
10. A Housing Infrastructure Fund (HIF) award of £227m has been made to enable
the relocation.
11. In the summer of 2020 Anglian Water ran a public consultation on three
shortlisted site options. In January this year Anglian Water announced their
preferred site, east of junction 34 of the A14.
12. Anglian Water have recently commenced their second consultation that closes on
18th August 2021.The statutory consultation is planned for early 2022 prior to
submission of their DCO.
13. The red line for the development that will subject of the DCO encompasses the
existing Cambridge WWTP, the proposed WWTP, Tunnel and pipeline corridors,
waste water transfer tunnel, treated effluent transfer (including River Cam Outfall)
and a Waterbeach transfer pipeline
14. The core site for the proposed WWTP covers 22-hectares and is located in the
Green Belt on open agricultural land south of Horningsea with the A14 on its
southern boundary.
15. Anglian Water’s proposals are presented as a single option and provide for a
circular form of development with the building structures enclosed by an

Page 28

earthwork bank/ bund. It is understood that this has been inspired by local historic
structures, such as Fleam Dyke and Devil’s Dyke and circular Iron Age hillforts
such as the Wandlebury Ring and Belsar’s Hill. Potentially with a further form of
enclosure on top of the bank/bund. New habitats for wildlife are proposed,
creating improved access to the countryside connecting to existing footpaths and
access routes. There are extensive landscape proposals to mitigate the visual
impact and a discovery centre offering education opportunities included as part of
the facility.
16. There are three vehicular access options being consulted on as part of the
current consultation. Option 1 is for access off Junction 34 of the A14 (Fen Ditton)
which consists of two sub-options (Options 1A and 1B). Option 1A uses a “ghost”
island junction whilst Option 1B involves reconfiguration to create a four arm
signalised junction. Option 2 provides for access off Junction 25 (Quy) and
Option 3 provides for a new junction on the north side of the A14.
17. The proposed development has been confirmed as a Nationally Significant
Infrastructure Project (NSIP) by virtue of a section 35 direction by the Secretary
of State. In line with section 37 of the 2008 Planning Act (as amended); this will
require an application to be submitted for a Development Consent Order (DCO).
18. DCO’s are subject to an examination by the Planning Inspectorate followed by a
final decision made by the Secretary of State.
19. A Cambridgeshire Quality Panel review was held on the 14th July 2021.
20. This report updates Members on the project, and highlights the key
considerations and issues arising from the proposals which will be used by
officers to shape the formal written response of the Authority to the Phase 2
Consultation.

Timeline
21. The deadline for formal responses to this stage of consultation is the 18th August
2021.
22. Following this an Environmental Impact Assessment Scoping request is
anticipated to be received via the Planning Inspectorate circa the 4th October
2021. Technical discussions with the LPAs will therefore need to take place
during August and September in advance of this.

Main Issues
23. This is an opportunity to provide a response to a statutory consultation regarding
the proposals and selected site. Further opportunities will be available through
ongoing engagement with the applicant, at the formal Phase 3 consultation and
subsequently via representations to the DCO Examination.
24. At this stage the following issues are proposed to be set out in the Councils
written response:

Page 29



Principle of Development: The Council supports the principle of the
relocation of the CWWTPR. The relocation will enable the realisation of the
objectives set out in the emerging AAP that is being developed by South
Cambridgeshire District Council and Cambridge City Council for the wider
North East Cambridge development and which would facilitate the delivery of
approximately 8,000 homes and 20,000 jobs.



Landscape Proposal: The landscape led approach is supported and the
scheme presents the opportunity to provide valuable green infrastructure to
the east of Cambridge. The presentation of a single landscape site
masterplan option as part of the current consultation does not however allow
consultees to comment on alternative options that may have been developed
or suitable.
The site is characterised as Fen Edge and the proposals should be explained
by reference to the alternative landscape approaches considered which had
regard to opportunities to respect and enhance the local character, including
Quy Fen, and support the wider Wicken Fen vision, contributing positively to
the Cambridge Nature Recovery Network. Typical landscape principles which
should be considered include linear drainage ditches, small scale pastoral
fields, sparse woodland cover with small deciduous blocks, wet and speciesrich grasslands, floodplain grazing marsh and shelterbelts. The landscape
should be multifunctional providing amenity, biodiversity and SuDs.
The proposal to install a structure on top of the earthwork bank is not
considered to be an acceptable approach nor does it maintain the openness
of the Green Belt. This issue needs to be given further consideration in the
context of the single landscape solution offered referenced above.
The potential reuse of tunnel spoil within the landscape is welcomed given its
potential to limit vehicle trips.



Vehicle Access: The three vehicle access options have been noted and the
preference of the Council is for the operational traffic to utilise a direct access
from the A14 (Option 3). This will avoid the use of local roads for HGV traffic
and enable active transport methods to be prioritised for local access avoiding
conflicting movements. It is appreciated that further detailed discussions will
be required to explore this further, including with Highways England and
Cambridgeshire County Council.



Sustainable Access: Further work is needed on the strategy for providing
cycle and pedestrian access to the site to utilise the discovery centre,
parkland and walking/cycle routes. The project presents an opportunity to
enhance access to the countryside. A route along the former railway
alignment should be considered further given the direct connections that this
could provide. In addition, the use of Option 3 for main vehicle access would
allow Low Fen Drove Way to be prioritised for pedestrian and cycle access.

Page 30



Technological Solution: The Council ‘s firm view is for an exemplary WWTP
facility to be delivered utilising the best available technologies. Technology
options have not been presented as part of the consultation process and the
method proposed has not been suitably justified. The method chosen has
implications for the size of the site, sustainability and power generation
potential, odour and the scale of structures such as the digester tanks. The
Council seeks further information regarding these matters and an assessment
of the best technological solution.



Biodiversity: The commitment to provide only 10% biodiversity net gain
which is a minimum requirement being put in statute is very disappointing. In
terms of delivery of an exemplar WWTP, the proposal should be making the
highest possible contribution to Biodiversity Net Gain delivery and there is
scope to achieve this. SCDC has pledged to Double Nature and has set an
aspirational 20% Biodiversity Net Gain ambition, which it expects partners to
provide, particularly with exemplar sites. The site has a unique opportunity to
do this given the connectivity to a County Wildlife Site and the current
intensive agricultural use.



Odour: The technical information to enable a full review of the odour
modelling work undertaken has not been submitted but it should be noted that
clarity is required regarding the useability of the landscape and open space
given potential odour conditions on the site.



Sustainability: The Council supports Anglian Waters objective that the new
facility will be operationally net zero and seek to reduce embedded carbon
during the construction phase. Achieving this goal will for a large part be
dependent on the technological solution chosen as highlighted above. The
opportunity to utilise natural processes to “polish” the treated waste water
within the landscape should also be investigated further to minimise the need
for energy intensive processes within the plant, notwithstanding that where
energy intensive processes can provide benefits that outweigh costs in terms
of land-take, transportation or embedded carbon etc., these should be
considered, especially in conjunction with renewable energy
production. Proposals for energy generation and connectivity to local energy
networks requires further detail to be provided to understand the feasibility.
Opportunities for advanced treatment of sludge should be considered
alongside the wider, beyond site environmental implications of sludge
spreading. Expected annual HGV tonne-kms associated with AD sludge
transport should be estimated and disclosed as part of the operations carbon
cost.



Implications for the aquifer: The opportunity should not be lost to consider
how the new plant could contribute in the future to wider strategic plan to
introduce greater water re-use. We would like to see multi agency

Page 31

cooperation, particularly with Cambridge Water, to ensure that no
opportunities are precluded that could lead to great water re-use in the future.


Further Details of pipeline, shafts and outfall: Further details are required
on the pipeline works and outfall structure proposed to the River Cam to be
able to comment on the appropriateness of the works. The discharge
chamber adjacent to the River Cam should not be in situ concrete or pre-cast
concrete as this does not reflect the rural landscape characteristics.



Noise -further discussions and assessments will be required in relation to
potential noise impacts on surrounding residential communities arising from
the development. These issues can be considered further under the EIA
Scoping process.

Options
25. To endorse the recommended approach to the consultation, with authority given
to the Joint Director of Planning and Economic Development, in consultation with
the Deputy Leader and Lead Member for Strategic Planning and Transport and
Lead Cabinet Member for Transformation and Projects to amend the draft
consultation response to make reference to any additional issues that may be
identified through the ongoing consultation process and to submit the
consultation response.
26. To make amendments to the approach and consultation response.
27. To decide not to respond to the consultation.

Implications for South Cambridgeshire
28. Engagement in the DCO process via written representations and subsequent
direct discussions with the application prior to the submission of the DCO
application provides the opportunity to minimise the impact of the scheme on the
local environment, climate and secure the best possible scheme for the residents
of Cambridgeshire.
Financial
29. None
Legal
30. The Council will be a statutory consultee to EIA Scoping and the Development
Consent Order Examination in due course. The Council has no statutory
obligation to provide a consultation response at this time.

Page 32

Staffing
31. None.
Risks/Opportunities
32. None.
Equality and Diversity
33. None.
Climate Change
34. Comments have been included on the scheme’s approach to sustainability.
Health & Wellbeing
35. The new parkland provides the opportunity to enhance health and wellbeing. The

technical aspects of the proposals will be reviewed in due course to ensure
potential impact on environmental health is correctly controlled.
Consultation responses
36. Internal consultation was carried out with specialist officers, with responses
received from a number of technical service areas. These are enclosed at
Appendix A. The proposal was reported to the Cambridgeshire Quality Panel on
14 July. Their formal written response is awaited but likely to be received before
the Cabinet meeting on 30 July. Their informal feedback has been incorporated
into this report.

Alignment with Council Priority Areas
Growing local businesses and economies
37. The CWWTPR Project is an important project to the local, and regional economy
due to the opportunity that it enables for development in North East Cambridge.
Housing that is truly affordable for everyone to live in
38. The CWWTPR Project support and enables future growth and housing delivery.

Page 33

Being green to our core
39. Comments have been provided on the scheme’s landscape approach as well as
in relation to the sustainability strategy.

Background Papers
Relevant Representations

Appendices
Appendix A: Relevant Representations

Report Author:
Sharon Brown – Assistant Director Delivery
Nick Finney – Strategic Sites Consultant

Page 34

Appendix A: Relevant Representations
Relevant Representations
o Sustainability
The concepts we would like to see for a project of this significance include:








Net zero carbon
Reduction of embedded/lifecycle carbon
Rely on renewable energy sources
Be water efficient
Construction management which addresses sustainable sourcing of materials,
and reuse and recycling of material from both decommissioning and new
construction
Be innovative, ground-breaking and exemplar in relation to sustainable
construction
o Environmental Health

The proposed development will need to undertake odour modelling in line with
statutory guidance. This should include an odour assessment of either the current or
similar proposed site and modelled in line with meteorological conditions to assess the
affects the development may have on existing receptors. Also require information on
whether any septicity may take place in pipes which direct the waste from the existing
sewage works to the proposed site and how this may be mitigated (if necessary).
The site proposes a variety of green open space with footpaths and bridleways
although no information has been provided on the protection these areas would have
from offensive odour.
A Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP), vehicle movement hours
restrictions and odour monitoring to be attached as a condition on any approval
granted.
o Landscape
Welcome the initial key visual receptors identified in the LVIA. However further
receptors need to be considered prior to final LVIA assessment.
A Green Belt Impact Assessment is required confirming how the development will
not have an adverse effect on the rural character and openness of the Green Belt,
how it will protect the setting and special character of Cambridge and what mitigation
measures are proposed to reduce any harm.
Applicant to identify the effects of all new accesses both temporary and permanent
on views, visual amenity and on the landscape itself with effective mitigation
strategies. This assessment to be included as evidence that alternative access

Page 35

approaches and / or designs have been assessed in terms of their landscape and
visual effects.
A Tree Survey, Arboricultural Implications Assessment, Arboricultural Method
Statement and Tree Protection Plan is required for vegetation both within and
adjacent to the site.
All details to respect and retain, or enhance the local character and distinctiveness of
the local landscape and of the individual National Character Area in which is it
located.
It is not clear if a detailed Landscape Baseline Study has already been undertaken to
assess the likely significant landscape and visual effects. At present it is not clear
how the landscape and visual considerations have influenced the final design.
An Earthworks and Soils Management Plan is to be provided prior to determination
including construction details, section details (including gradients), soil handling and
movement and disable access.
Applicant has outlined that ‘going forward from 2050 and beyond, the facility will
have the flexibility to adapt and evolve within the proposed footprint as new
technologies or treatment opportunities present themselves’. Applicant to confirm
that there is sufficient space available for expansion (if required) within the confines
of the permanent fixed earthwork bank.
To provide a consistent approach throughout the development a site-wide lighting
strategy should be provided
SuDs and drainage – No details are available on SuDs and drainage proposals and
need to be provided.
Proposed details to be landscape led and integrated within the overall layout rather
than an add on element this includes exploring opportunities to integrate the function
of the treatment work with the landscape e.g reed bed treatment.
Due to its location within the Fen Edge the applicant should consider a soft
landscape proposal which respects and retains, or enhances the local character and
distinctiveness of the local landscape and of the individual National Character Area
in which is it located. Typical landscape principles which should be considered
include linear drainage ditches, small scale pastoral fields, sparse woodland cover
with small deciduous blocks, floodplain grazing marsh and shelterbelts.
o Design
Further information of the range of cladding materials proposed for the two anaerobic
digesters would be helpful given their prominent height: they will be the tallest
element of the plant with a height of 26m relative to finished ground level, and will
therefore be visible above the earthwork bank, including any screen on top.

Page 36

The concept of providing a Discovery Centre for visitors is welcome. This would
allow people to interact with the water recycling process and develop an
understanding of its role in supporting communities and the environment. It would be
useful to see further information on the location and detailed design of this facility,
e.g. scale, massing, layout, appearance, etc. It is understood that dedicated parking
may be provided for visitors to the Discovery Centre. It would be useful to provide
information on the number of parking spaces include Blue Badge spaces and cycle
parking provision. Electric charging points should be provided to support the use of
electric vehicles.
It is understood that the proposed facility will be powered by solar panels and this is
welcome. Consideration should be given to where they will be located to avoid
impact on the Green Belt.
The concept of providing educational opportunities through the creation of a
Discovery Centre for communities to understand the role which water recycling
centres play in
the Circular Economy is supported. The water recycling theme can potentially be
used to inform the architecture of the building.
o Heritage
A detailed Historic Environment Assessment plan has been prepared by Mott
MacDonald which has highlighted the potential impact of site 3 on the Grade II*
Biggin Abbey and possibly Fen Ditton conservation area but that the extent of that
impact will be dependent on the final design.
The report also states that the mitigation factor which will have the greatest effect on
reducing potential impact on surrounding heritage assets is the design, height and
massing of the Plant. It refers specifically to the position and reduction in height of
the of the digesters and that all other buildings over 10m should be reduced in height
and mass wherever possible. There are no detailed plans or designs of the Plant
itself presented in Anglian Water’s information and so it is not possible to make
meaningful comments on the heritage impact of site 3 other than the concerns raised
in the Mott Macdonald report.

Page 37

This page is left blank intentionally.

Agenda Item 10

Report to:

Cabinet

Lead Cabinet Member:

Councillor Neil Gough – Deputy Leader and Lead
Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning and Transport
and Lead Cabinet Member for Transformation and
Projects
Stephen Kelly – Joint Director of Planning and
Economic Development

Lead Officer:

30 July 2021

Cambridge South Station and Associated
Infrastructure Enhancements
Executive Summary
1. This report is to approve the approach to South Cambridgeshire District Council’s
statutory response to the consultation on the application by Network Rail made
under the Transport and Works Act 1992 for the Cambridge South Infrastructure
Enhancements scheme and request for deemed planning consent submitted to
the Secretary of State for Transport. The consultation ends on 2 August 2021.

2. The proposed Order would authorise the construction, maintenance and
operation by Network Rail of works comprising the construction of a new station
at the Cambridge Biomedical Campus within Cambridge City Council
administrative boundary, and associated improvements to the West Anglia Main
Line, including works within South Cambridgeshire (Great Shelford parish).

3. The recommendation is to support in principle the proposed works within South
Cambridgeshire, however concerns are raised about elements of the proposal,
including the proposed biodiversity net gain targets, the landscape and visual
impact assessment, the impacts on local residents, the impact on the local cycle
network, and the impact on the Scheduled Monument within the application site
boundary.

4. This officer recommendation is based on an assessment of the site constraints
and consultation with relevant technical officers, which are summarised in this

Page 39

report. The scheme is acceptable based on the relevant policies of the South
Cambridgeshire Local Plan 2018, the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough
Combined Authority Local Transport Plan (2020) and other materials
considerations.

Key Decision
5. No.

Recommendations
6. It is recommended that Formal Cabinet endorses the draft formal response in
Appendix 1 of this report and gives authority to Joint Director for Planning and
Economic Development to make minor amendments to the consultation response
as appropriate.

Reasons for Recommendations
7. The scheme is acceptable based on the relevant policies of the South
Cambridgeshire Local Plan 2018, the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough
Combined Authority Local Transport Plan (2020) and other materials
considerations.

Details
Background
8. Network Rail Infrastructure Limited (Network Rail) submitted an application on 18
June to the Secretary of State for Transport for a Transport and Works Act Order
(TWAO) to authorise the construction and operation of the Cambridge South
Infrastructure Enhancement scheme, including a request for deemed planning
consent. The application will be determined by the Secretary of State and South
Cambridgeshire District Council is a statutory consultee. The consultation ends
on 2 August 2021. Greater Cambridge Shared Planning has assessed the
proposal and made recommendations to both South Cambridgeshire and
Cambridge City councils for the cross-boundary works.

Page 40

9. The stated aim of the scheme is to improve connectivity and capacity in the
Cambridgeshire region and to accommodate future growth in the area. The
primary works are the construction of a new railway station located between the
Cambridge Biomedical Campus and Hobson’s Park and bordered to the north by
the Cambridge Guided Busway, which are within Cambridge City administrative
area. The scheme includes associated works and improvements to the West
Anglia Main Line track within South Cambridgeshire, including works to Shepreth
Branch Junction at the southern extent of the application site boundary.

10. The application states that the proposed works would not extend the existing
capacity of the rail network to provide additional services beyond those that
currently operate. However, the works would future-proof the line and have been
developed in discussion with the East West Rail Company to deliver an
infrastructure design that can be adapted to meet longer-term needs of the
railway network in the area, including to allow potential future East West Rail to
stop at the new station.

Proposed development
11. The works within South Cambridgeshire are:


works to Shepreth Branch Junction in Great Shelford, including remodelling
the switches and minor realignment of the track for short distance to permit
line speeds to be increased from 30 miles per hour (mph) to 50 mph;



associated works to the embankments to accommodate and support the new
railway infrastructure;



Webster’s footbridge installation of safety screens and a small railway
maintenance area to the east of the existing Webster’s footbridge;



closure of farm crossings Dukes No.2 Level Crossing and Webster’s Level
Crossing at Shelford and extinguishment of the existing private access over
the crossing to improve safety. A new bridge is proposed over Hobson’s
Brook to give access to that land from Addenbrooke’s Road;



new permanent rail systems compound to the south-west of Addenbrooke’s
Road (Nine Wells Bridge) within a fenced enclosure containing an electricity

Page 41

substation, a single storey building housing signalling and equipment, space
for maintenance vehicle parking;


attenuation ponds and drainage works to the south of Addenbrooke’s Road;



acquisition of replacement land for exchange open space land to the south of
Addenbrooke’s Road including landscaping works;



relocation of existing masts and compounds;



powers to carry out certain works in the highway and the right to use private
roads for the purposes of construction, and powers to carry out works to
streets including the temporary diversion of streets; and



temporary diversion of NCN Route 11 (cycle track) and reinstatement post
construction to its original alignment under Nine Wells Bridge.

12. The Council has received an electronic copy of the application documents which
can be viewed online (https://www.networkrail.co.uk/running-the-railway/ourroutes/anglia/improving-the-railway-in-anglia/cambridge-south-station/ ). The
application includes a draft Order, a Consultation Report, Deemed Planning
Permission and proposed conditions, and an Environmental Statement has been
submitted with the application. The application is also accompanied by a
Planning Statement, Design and Access Statement, Public Open Space
Assessment.

Site constraints
13. The relevant site constraints in South Cambridgeshire within, or close to, the
application site boundary include Hobson’s Brook which runs through the site and
Nine Wells Local Nature Reserve within 100m of the site. The site is within the
Cambridge Green Belt. The Scheduled Monument to the west of the railway line
and to the south of Addenbrooke’s Road is partially within the site. The Grade II
Listed Nine Wells Monument is within 130m to the east of the site and there are a
number of other Listed Buildings in Great Shelford within 30m of the application
site boundary. The Great Shelford Conservation Area adjoins the southern
boundary of the application site.

Assessment

Page 42

14. The overall aim of the Cambridge South Infrastructure Enhancements scheme to
promote connectivity within Cambridgeshire is supported to facilitate future
growth in the area and promote sustainable development, in line with the
objectives of the South Cambridgeshire Local Plan 2018 which supports
sustainable economic growth, responding to climate change, and maximising
sustainable transport modes (policy S/2), and also supported in the
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority Local Transport Plan
(2020).

15. Network Rail has committed to achieve a 10% net gain in biodiversity, however
the Council encourages the applicant to align with the Council’s Doubling Nature
Strategy 2021 and aspire to target 20% biodiversity net gain. The application
provides limited information about how the biodiversity net gain will be achieved,
but states that this will be through options to purchase additional land to build
new habitats; to purchase biodiversity units from third party organisations; or
working with third parties to achieve biodiversity units on their land. The detail
would be secured through a condition for an Ecological Method Statement to be
submitted to the Council for consideration, however insufficient information has
been submitted at this stage to demonstrate that these options are deliverable
and would achieve the target, and as such there is no evidence that the condition
could be met. More information should be submitted before the application is
determined.

16. The Landscape Team has reviewed the Landscape and Visual Impact
Assessment report which has been submitted by the applicant. This includes an
assessment of receptors within South Cambridgeshire, including from National
Cycle Route 11 (NCN11), public rights of way and permissive paths, accessible
areas of More’s Meadow, the Magog Downs and Nine Wells Local Nature
Reserve, as well as users of the railway line. The methodology is acceptable and
the conclusions are supported, however there is a concern that the findings and
conclusions are partly reliant on the successful mitigation through the landscape
proposals. The application does not provide sufficient detail of the landscape
proposals to provide unreserved assurance of the success of the mitigation, but
the draft conditions secure appropriate details to assess this at a later stage.

Page 43

17. On a minor point, more detail is requested on the deemed planning drawings
parameter plans to specify the footprint and height of substation and other
structures within the compound to the south of Addenbrooke’s Road. The land
take for this facility should be carefully considered at detailed design. The area
must be carefully integrated into its rural location and the land take minimise to
give maximum opportunity to improve the surrounding environment.

18. The enhancements to future-proof the West Anglia Main Line are supported in
principle, however the proposed increase in line speed at the Shepreth Branch
Junction from 30 mph to 50 mph must carefully consider the noise and vibration
impact on local residents. The Environmental Health team has reviewed the
operational noise and vibration impacts and has not raised any concerns on
nearby residential properties, albeit they have recommended a condition for
further assessment of operational noise and vibration impacts on sensitive
commercial uses within the Cambridge Biomedical Campus to be submitted.
19. Regarding construction noise, the applicant’s noise modelling has identified
construction noise levels at various locations as being potentially moderate –
major in terms of magnitude by day and by night, including at Shepreth Branch
Junction (particularly Abberley Wood). This was to be expected and it is
acknowledged that due to health and safety reasons and access constraints,
work will need to be carried out throughout the day and night depending on
whether or not possession of rail tracks is required. However, site specific
mitigation and attenuation measures will need to be employed at locations where
works will occur that have the potential to adversely impact residential premises
i.e. residential properties at Granham’s Road, Davey Crescent and Abberley
Wood areas of Great Shelford. These measures should be included in the Code
of Construction Practice to be submitted via a condition.

20. The Environmental Health team has noted that major construction ground-borne
vibration impacts are identified in the applicant’s assessment at Shepreth Branch
Junction due to piling. Full details of mitigation will be provided within the Code of
Construction Practice. The applicant has committed to Best Practicable Means

Page 44

alongside continued liaison and communication with occupiers of the premises in
close proximity to the station area, with details to be provided in the Code of
Construction Practice Part A. This includes a commitment to provide advanced
notification of works to local residents and a project helpline. The timing of
advanced notifications will be agreed through Code of Construction Practice Part
B following consultation with the Council. Targeted communications strategies
will be developed for households and community groups that are likely to
experience multiple impacts during the construction phase, which will be
developed in consultation with representatives of the most affected communities.
The Council expects good and early engagement with local residents on both
mitigation measures and the consultation strategy to minimise disruption to local
residents. The Health Impact Officer has recommended a condition for a
communications strategy with residents to minimise the impact of construction on
mental health, which would already be covered by the Code of Construction
Practice as above.

21. The Air Quality Assessment submitted by the applicant concludes that the
development once fully operational will lead to a ‘reduction of operational air
quality effects’ and concludes that no mitigation is required. The Environmental
Health team acknowledges that this is true across the wider road network and
agrees with the methodology used, but has concerns that the assessment has
overlooked negative impacts on local roads around the development site due to
cars waiting / idling to pick up passengers. It does not appear that monitoring the
impact on adjacent minor residential roads is a requirement of the
Cambridgeshire County Council Transport Team. However, the Environmental
Health team recommends some form of monitoring once the development site is
operational is conditioned. The Council requests further engagement with the
applicant on how this could be addressed.

22. Regarding artificial lighting, the Environmental Health team has advised that the
risk to people as a result of this project is likely to be low, although there may be
some impact including from the works in South Cambridgeshire. Revised wording
for an artificial lighting scheme is recommended which would require compliance
with the relevant guidance.

Page 45

23. The proposed temporary diversion of the NCN Route 11 during the construction
works should be of minimum duration and with suitable diversions in place, which
should be consulted on with local cycling groups, Great Shelford Parish Council
and other user groups. Access to the railway line for construction works should
not be taken from the NCN 11 route. The timing of the construction works
affecting cycle routes should carefully consider the Greater Cambridge
Partnership’s proposed Sawston Greenways route on the existing Genome Path
between the Cambridge Biomedical Campus and Great Shelford to minimise
disruption to users.

24. The works affecting the Scheduled Monument within the application site
boundary must be minimal and must have the support of Historic England and
Cambridgeshire County Council Archaeology Team, and mitigation should be
secured through the consent.

25. The Sustainable Drainage Engineer has noted that the proposed new culvert
extension and drainage at Shepreth Branch Junction is located within an
awarded watercourse to the Council and any surface water drainage alterations
which contribute to change of rate/volume of flow would require land drainage
bye law approval by the Council. The applicant should be advised accordingly
via an informative and draft wording is recommended.

26. It is noted that far more significant works and interventions are proposed within
the Cambridge City Council administrative area, including the construction of the
station itself and significant earthworks within Hobson’s Park.

Options
27. The following options can be considered:
a) To endorse the draft response (Appendix 1) with authority to the Joint Director
of Planning and Economic Development to make amendments to the wording
of the draft as appropriate.
b) To make amendments to the draft response.
c) To decide to not respond to the consultation.

Page 46

Implications
28. In the writing of this report, taking into account financial, legal, staffing, risk,
equality and diversity, climate change, and any other key issues, the following
implications have been considered:-

Financial
29. None

Legal
30. The Council is a statutory consultee and required under the Transport and Works
Act to provide comments within the statutory consultation period, which ends on 2
August.

Staffing
31. None.

Risks/Opportunities
32. None.

Equality and Diversity
33. None.

Climate Change
34. The scheme overall would promote sustainable transport modes.

Health & Wellbeing
35. Recommendations have been made within the report from the Health Impact
Assessment Team.

Consultation responses
36. The following is a summary of the relevant consultation comments received:

Page 47

GCSP Built and Natural Environment Landscape Team
37. Comments relating to the station design, impact on Green Belt, Hobson’s Park
and Long Road landscaping works, site compounds and haul roads.

GCSP Built and Natural Environment Urban Design Team
38. Detailed comments in relation to the station design, movement and access,
parameter plans and draft conditions.

SCDC Ecology Officer
39. Comments limited to the area around the Shepreth Branch Junction and the area
between Addenbrooke’s Road and Nine Wells LNR.
-

No significant impact of the works to the Shepreth Branch Junction area, with
some impact to protected species (protected species survey found breeding
and wintering birds, and great crested newts may be constraints to works) that
can be mitigated through non-licensable methodologies.

-

No objection to the proposed works to the area between Addenbrooke’s Road
and Nine Wells LNR. Protected species surveys found low population of
water vole using the water course, breeding and wintering birds, and evidence
(eDNA) of great crested newts. the predominant habitat found in this area is
arable cropland. Post construction this area will provide structural vegetation,
native tree and shrub planting, and new water bodies. This is encouraging
and will help to provide a biodiversity net gain in this area.

South Cambridgeshire & Cambridge City Council Environmental
Health Team joint comments
40. Detailed comments in relation to the construction and operational impacts.

Cambridge City Council Drainage Team
41. Detailed comments on modelling and recommended informative regarding the
new culvert extension and drainage at Shepreth Branch Junction.

Page 48

GCSP Policy Team
42. Advice regarding the assessment of the proposal against Green Belt policy.

SCDC Health Impact Assessment Team
43. Recommend a condition to secure a communications strategy to mitigate the
impact of construction on mental health of nearby residents.

Cambridge City Council Access Officer
44. No comments received.

GCSP Sustainability Officer
45. Detailed comments on the sustainability of the station construction and climate
resilience.

Great Shelford Parish Council
46. No comments received.

47. A full copy of the responses is available on public access:
https://applications.greatercambridgeplanning.org/onlineapplications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=documents&keyVal=QV78CBDX0C
X00

Alignment with Council Priority Areas
Growing local businesses and economies
48. The proposal would improve connectivity and capacity in the Cambridgeshire
region and to accommodate future growth in the area.
Background Papers
South Cambridgeshire Local Plan 2018
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority Local Transport Plan 2020

Appendices
Appendix A: Draft Formal Consultation Response

Page 49

Report Author:
Charlotte Burton – Principal Planner, Greater Cambridge Shared Planning
Telephone: 07704 018482

Page 50

Greater Cambridge Shared Planning
South Cambridgeshire Hall
Cambourne Business Park
Cambourne, CB23 6EA
www.greatercambridgeplanning.org

Secretary of State for Transport
c/o Transport Infrastructure Planning Unit
Department for Transport
Great Minister House
33 Horseferry Road
London , SW1P 4DR

By email only
Our ref. 21/02957/TWA
2 August 2021

Dear Secretary of State,
Network Rail (Cambridge South Infrastructure Enhancements) Order
South Cambridgeshire District Council (SCDC) received formal notification on 18
June 2018 that Network Rail Infrastructure Limited (Network Rail) has applied under
Section 6 of the Transport and Works Act 1992 for the abovementioned Order under
Sections 1 and 5 of that Act. This letter provides the Council’s formal response.
Proposed development
The Council has reviewed the whole scheme and - while noting the significant works
for the construction of the station in Cambridge City administrative boundary – has
focussed our comments on the works within South Cambridgeshire, comprising:


works to Shepreth Branch Junction in Great Shelford, including remodelling
the switches and minor realignment of the track for short distance to permit
line speeds to be increased from 30 miles per hour (mph) to 50 mph;



associated works to the embankments to accommodate and support the new
railway infrastructure;



Webster’s footbridge installation of safety screens and a small railway
maintenance area to the east of the existing Webster’s footbridge;

Page 51



closure of farm crossings Dukes No.2 Level Crossing and Webster’s Level
Crossing at Shelford and extinguishment of the existing private access over
the crossing to improve safety. A new bridge is proposed over Hobson’s
Brook to give access to that land from Addenbrooke’s Road;



new permanent rail systems compound to the south-west of Addenbrooke’s
Road (Nine Wells Bridge) within a fenced enclosure containing an electricity
substation, a single storey building housing signalling and equipment, space
for maintenance vehicle parking;



attenuation ponds and drainage works to the south of Addenbrooke’s Road;



acquisition of replacement land for exchange open space land to the south of
Addenbrooke’s Road including landscaping works;



relocation of existing masts and compounds;



powers to carry out certain works in the highway and the right to use private
roads for the purposes of construction, and powers to carry out works to
streets including the temporary diversion of streets; and



temporary diversion of NCN Route 11 (cycle track) and reinstatement post
construction to its original alignment under Nine Wells Bridge.

It is noted that far more significant works and interventions are proposed within the
Cambridge City Council administrative area, including the construction of the station
itself and significant earthworks within Hobson’s Park.
Site constraints
The relevant site constraints include Hobson’s Brook which runs through the site and
Nine Wells Local Nature Reserve within 100m of the site. The site is within the
Cambridge Green Belt. The Scheduled Monument to the west of the railway line and
to the south of Addenbrooke’s Road is partially within the site. The Grade II Listed
Nine Wells Monument is within 130m to the east of the site and there are a number
of other Listed Buildings in Great Shelford within 30m of the application site
boundary. The Great Shelford Conservation Area adjoins the southern boundary of
the application site.
Comments
The Council overall supports the aim of the Cambridge South Infrastructure
Enhancements scheme to promote connectivity within Cambridgeshire to facilitate
future growth in the area and promote sustainable development, which aligns with
the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Combined Authority Local Transport Plan
(2020). This supports the objectives of the South Cambridgeshire Local Plan 2018
to promote sustainable economic growth, responding to climate change, and
maximising sustainable transport modes (policy S/2).
Biodiversity net gain

Page 52

The Council notes the applicant’s commitment to achieve a 10% net gain in
biodiversity in accordance with the forthcoming Environment Bill. However, the
Council encourages Network Rail to align with the Council’s Doubling Nature
Strategy 2021 and aspire to achieve 20% biodiversity net gain through the
development, which would deliver greater benefits for the natural environment. The
loss of trees along the railway line and across the scheme should therefore be
minimised and the Council would seek a condition to secure tree protection
measures.
Having said this, we are concerned that the applicant has provided limited
information about how the biodiversity net gain target will be achieved. Some
biodiversity enhancement would be provided on the proposed public open space
exchange land to the south of Addenbrooke’s Road, which is supported by the
Council’s Ecology Officer. However, the applicant has also stated that the net gain
targets would be achieved through options to purchase additional land to build new
habitats; to purchase biodiversity units from third party organisations; or working with
third parties to achieve biodiversity units on their land. The detail would be secured
through a condition for an Ecological Method Statement to be submitted to the
Council for consideration.
This approach is concerning, because insufficient information has been submitted at
this stage to demonstrate to the Council that these options are deliverable and would
achieve the target, and would provide appropriate mitigation for the scheme. These
options would be dependent to some extent on third parties, either through
partnership working or sale of land, and are somewhat outside of the applicant’s
control. In addition, enhancements should be on site or as close to the site as
possible so that it provides appropriate mitigation for the scheme. Therefore, we
require further clarity on this point to determine whether the recommended condition
would meet the six tests for planning conditions. More information about the
proposed biodiversity enhancement must be submitted before the application is
determined.
Landscape and visual impact
The Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment (LVIA) has been carried out in
accordance with the relevant guidance set out in ‘Guidelines for Landscape and
Visual Impact Assessment, Third Edition’ (GLVIA3) (Ref. 1) and it is proportionate
and appropriate. The Council agrees to a large extent with the findings and
conclusions of the assessment in relation to both the landscape character and visual
impacts. However, the findings and conclusions of the LVIA, are partly reliant on the
successful mitigation through the landscape proposals. The application does not
provide sufficient detail about the landscape proposals to provide unreserved
assurance of the success of the mitigation.
On a more detailed point, the substation and railway systems compound to the south
of Addenbrooke’s Road must be carefully integrated into its rural location and the
land take must be minimised to give maximum opportunity to improve the
surrounding environment. The deemed planning drawing parameter plan ‘heights’
(158454-ARC-ZZ-ZZ-DRG-LEP-000102 P01) shows the indicative location of the

Page 53

substation and other structures within the compound, however this is not sufficiently
precise to control the scale and height of the building that could come forward under
the discharge of conditions, which could lead to ambiguity when assessing
compliance with the parameter plan. The annotations should specify a maximum
building footprint and single storey height.
Impact on local residents
The applicant’s noise modelling has identified construction noise levels at various
locations as being potentially moderate to major by day and by night, including at
Shepreth Branch Junction (particularly Abberley Wood). This was to be expected
and it is acknowledged that due to health and safety reasons and access constraints,
work will need to be carried out throughout the day and night depending on whether
or not possession of rail tracks is required. However, site specific mitigation and
attenuation measures will need to be employed at locations where works will occur
that have the potential to adversely impact residential areas of Great Shelford.
These measures must be included in the Code of Construction Practice.
The applicant’s assessment has also identified major construction ground-borne
vibration impacts at Shepreth Branch Junction. Full details of mitigation will need to
be provided within the Code of Construction Practice. The applicant has committed
to Best Practicable Means alongside continued liaison and communication with
occupiers of the premises in close proximity to the station area, with details to be
provided in the Code of Construction Practice Part A. The timing of the advanced
notifications will be set out in the Code of Construction Practice Part B following
consultation with the Council’s Environmental Health Team. It is important to have
good and early engagement with the Council and residents on both the mitigation
measures and the consultation strategy to minimise the disruption to local residents
and impact on mental health.
The Air Quality Assessment submitted by the applicant concludes that the
development once fully operational will lead to a ‘reduction of operational air quality
effects’ and concludes that no mitigation is required. While this is true across the
wider road network and the methodology used is supported, the Council is
concerned that the assessment has overlooked negative impacts on local roads
around the development site due to cars waiting / idling to pick up passengers. It
does not appear that monitoring the impact on adjacent minor residential roads is a
requirement of the Cambridgeshire County Council Transport Team. However, the
Council recommends some form of monitoring once the development site is
operational is conditioned. We request further discussion with the applicant about
how this could be addressed.
With regards to artificial lighting, it is acknowledged that risk to people as a result of
this project is likely to be low, although there may be some impact. Generally
speaking, for people, it is required that any artificial lighting installed (for construction
or operational purposes) meet the Obtrusive Light Limitations for Exterior Lighting
Installations contained within the Institute of Lighting Professionals (ILP) ‘Guidance
Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light - GN01/20 (2020)(or as superseded)’ both
on-site and off-site. Replacement wording for condition 24 is recommended to

Page 54

secure compliance with this guidance and to cover construction and operational
lighting.
Artificial lighting
No artificial lighting for construction or operation shall be installed until a
detailed artificial lighting scheme has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The lighting scheme shall meet the
Obtrusive Light Limitations for Exterior Lighting Installations contained within
the Institute of Lighting Professionals (ILP) ‘Guidance Notes for the Reduction
of Obtrusive Light - GN01/20 (2020)(or as superseded)’. Development shall
be carried out only in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To protect the risk from artificial lighting to people.

Cycle network
The works to the railway line at Shepreth Branch Junction should be accessed from
land owned by Network Rail as far as possible, and access must not be taken from
the NCN 11 route. The proposed temporary diversion of the NCN 11 route during
the construction works should be of minimum duration and with suitable diversions in
place, which should be consulted on with local cycling groups, Great Shelford Parish
Council and other user groups. The timing of the construction works affecting cycle
routes should carefully consider the Greater Cambridge Partnership’s proposed
Sawston Greenways route on the existing Genome Path between the Cambridge
Biomedical Campus and Great Shelford to minimise disruption to users.
Archaeology
The works affecting the Scheduled Monument within the application site boundary
must be minimal and must have the support of Historic England and Cambridgeshire
County Council Archaeology Team, and mitigation should be secured through the
consent.
Drainage
The proposed new culvert extension and drainage at Shepreth Branch Junction is
located within an awarded watercourse to South Cambridgeshire District Council and
any surface water drainage alterations which contribute to change of rate/volume of
flow would require land drainage bye law approval by the Council. The applicant
should be advised accordingly via an informative. Appropriate wording is provided as
follows:
Informative: New culvert extension and drainage at Shepreth Branch
junction.
The culvert is located within an awarded watercourse to South
Cambridgeshire District Council and any surface water drainage alterations

Page 55

which contribute to change of rate/volume of flow would require land drainage
bye law approval by the Council.

I trust that these comments will be taken into account and please do not hesitate to
contact me if you require further clarification on any of these points. I look forward to
hearing from you with regards the next stages of the application in due course.
Yours sincerely,

Stephen Kelly
Joint Director of Planning and Economic Development
On behalf of
South Cambridgeshire District Council

Page 56

Agenda Item 11

Report to:

Cabinet

Lead Cabinet Member:

Cllr Neil Gough - Deputy Leader and Lead Cabinet
Member for Strategic Planning and Transport and
Lead Cabinet Member for Transformation and
Projects
Stephen Kelly - Joint Director of Planning and
Economic Development

Lead Officer:

30 July 2021

Approach to response to the A428 Black Cat and
Caxton Gibbet road widening Development Consent
Order application
Executive Summary
1. This report is to approve the approach to South Cambridgeshire District Council’s
statutory response to the A428 Black Cat and Caxton Gibbet road widening
Development Consent Order (DCO) application submitted to the Secretary of
State for Transport.
2. The proposed 10-mile dual carriageway would link the A1 Black Cat roundabout
in Bedfordshire to the A428 Caxton Gibbet roundabout in Cambridgeshire. A
number of junction improvements will be made, including a three-tier junction at
Black Cat roundabout allowing free flowing traffic onto the A1 and the new dual
carriageway.
3. The recommendation is to support in principle the proposed works within South
Cambridgeshire, however concerns are raised about elements of the proposal,
including traffic at local junctions during construction, biodiversity net gain targets,
noise impact on local residents, the impact on the local cycle network, and the
impact on climate.
4. This officer recommendation is based on an assessment of the site constraints
and the existing materials provided. Ongoing consultation with relevant technical
officers and the project promoters may serve to resolve matters identified before
the closure of the consultation.

Key Decision
5. No.

Page 57

Recommendations
6. It is recommended that Cabinet endorses the approach set out in this report and
gives delegated authority to the Joint Director of Planning and Economic
Development in consultation with the Lead Cabinet Member for Strategic
Planning and Transport and Lead Cabinet Member for Transformation and
Projects to review and amend the response contained within the Local Impact
Report, Written representations and Statement of Common Ground in response
to further information that may be forthcoming from the scheme promoters.
Reasons for Recommendations
7. While the principle of the A428 road widening project is accepted, there are areas
that the scheme needs to address in more detail to accord with the South
Cambridgeshire Local Plan 2018, the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough
Combined Authority Local Transport Plan (2020) and other materials
considerations.

Details
Background
8. Highways England are proposing to upgrade the route between the Black Cat
roundabout and Caxton Gibbet roundabout with a new 10-mile dual carriageway
and associated junction improvements, including major engineering works to
improve the Black Cat roundabout. The scheme aims to improve journeys by
road between Milton Keynes and Cambridge, bringing communities together and
supporting long term growth in the region.
9. As a major strategic investment, the A428 Black Cat to Caxton Gibbet project
being developed by Highways England is applying for a Development Consent
Order (DCO), a special type of planning consent for nationally significant
infrastructure projects (NSIPs). This paper updates Members on the project, and
highlights issues or areas that may become points of disagreement or difference
at Examination.
10. The report sets out officers’ initial assessment of the application, which is still
undergoing review, and Members are requested to provide comments and
direction on areas of interest or concern, as well as note areas that are
supported.

Timeline
11. The Development Consent Order application was submitted on 26th February
2021.Following this submission, the Cambridgeshire authorities submitted a
robust response in respect of the Adequacy of Consultation procedural letter
from PINS. The response was supportive of the development in principle but
raised concerns about poor engagement and a lack of technical pre-

Page 58

application detail in advance of the submission. The DCO was subsequently
accepted for examination by the Planning Inspectorate on 24th March 2021.
12. This triggered the beginning of the pre-examination period in which interested
parties including South Cambridgeshire District Council were invited to
provide relevant representations to the Planning Inspectorate (PINS).
13. The Council has been working jointly with Cambridgeshire County Council
(County) and Huntingdonshire District Council (Hunts). The three authorities,
(hereafter to be referred to as the Cambridgeshire Authorities) have
responded to the initial request for relevant representations on 10th June
2021. The key issues identified are set out in para.4.
14. PINS has appointed the Examining Authority who have recently updated
interested parties on the next steps. Formal responses from interested parties
including Written Representations, the Local Impact Report and Statement of
Common Ground are required for submission to PINS by 31st August 2021.
15. The aspiration is that the Written Representations will be drafted on a joint
basis with Hunts and County and officers are in the process of preparing this.
The Written Representations are intended to be detailed representations on
the Scheme and the DCO application and cover the matters highlighted oin
Appendix A.
16. The Local Impact Report is a written report giving details of the likely impact of
the Scheme on the authority's area. Officers are in the process of preparing a
joint draft with counterparts at Hunts and County.
17. The Statement of Common Ground is intended to set out areas of agreement
between Highways England, as the applicant, and the districts. Areas which
are not agreed upon then become areas of focus during the examination.
Highways England is yet to provide an initial draft Statement of Common
Ground to the Cambridgeshire Authorities despite requests to this effect of
over 9 months. This has been highlighted to Highways England by the
Cambridgeshire Authorities as an area of great risk.

Main Issues
18. The Cambridgeshire Authorities continue to work closely together to develop
a joint response to this application, and this is intended to continue throughout
the Examination period. However, at this time, the level of information
provided means that in a number of areas, it is not possible for the authorities
to provide a definitive view on certain matters at this time. Further information
is being prepared by the project promoters - upon which the final response of
the Authority will need to be based. This will require delegation of the final
submission to the Joint Director of Planning in consultation with the Lead
Member.
19. Issues that are emerging as the application is reviewed are set out below. It
should be noted that although officers were engaging with the Highways

Page 59

England team throughout last year, much of the detail of the DCO including
pertinent details in respect of environmental impacts and traffic modelling was
only submitted at the time of the application.
20. It should also be noted that if the Council disagrees with or wishes to seek
changes to specific elements of the application, written representations will
need to be made based on policy or evidence, to make a case to the Planning
Inspector at the Examination.
21. The following areas are likely to be supported:
22. Journey time: The project delivers quicker journeys and reduced congestion
on what was (pre-Covid) a congested and unreliable strategic route.
23. Safety: The new road will attract most of the traffic from the existing A428 and
away from local roads, on to the new dual carriageway.
24. Growth and Development: The road forms part of the wider Ox-Cam Arc
development area which the Council supports, and removes the final single
carriageway section of road between Cambridge and Milton Keynes
25. The following areas need further discussion with Highways England, the
provision of information, or commitments from the application to reach
agreement and resolve:








Biodiversity: The Cambridgeshire Authorities are likely to request greater
commitment on this issue, noting that although this project will be
considered under national guidance, the recently adopted Arc
Environmental Principles include a commitment to the highest possible
levels of biodiversity net gain..
Noise: There has been no assessment on the impacts on new housing at
Cambourne West and relationship with Caxton Gibbet junction which will
have an elevated road layout with higher anticipated vehicle speeds.
There are also gaps in information provided, as a result of a lack of
continuous noise monitoring at identified sensitive locations (eg Eltisley
and isolated properties). Officers are therefore seeking additional details
of mitigation regarding noise, dust and lighting to be applied to protect
nearby sensitive receptors from compound and borrow pit activities, with
the potential to cause nuisance
Highway Design: Cambridge County Council, as the Highway Authority
wants to establish and agree a legally binding process for the approval
and acceptance of the design and subsequent construction of any local
roads to be built by the project and then handed over to the authority to
maintain, including the provision of funding and upgrade of facilities so
that expenditure is minimised.
Active Travel: The Cambridgeshire Authorities want to be sure that highquality provision is being made for cyclists, pedestrians and horse riders
as part of the local roads to be handed over to the authority and to the
surrounding communities, including ensuring that the designs meet the
latest relevant guidance (e.g. LTN1/20).

Page 60














Climate Change and Carbon: The Council has adopted the Zero Carbon
Strategy outlining how the district to aims to halve carbon emissions by
2030 and reduce them to zero by 2050. Whilst supporting this major
project, itself a large net future traffic generator, the Council seeks further
considerations on how this project can more effectively align with these
priorities. .
Traffic Management: The submitted traffic modelling of the effect of the
development on local roads is being reviewed to establish the impact on
the wider Highway Network, and required controls on traffic routing during
construction. Experience of the A14 emphasises the importance of
effective protection and mitigation for local communities as far as
possible. An understanding of traffic re-routing after construction of the
new road is also needed given the experiences with the A14, the
significance of the Girton Interchange and the sensitivity of the villages
along the A428. The Councils response may require more a detailed
response on this matter depending upon the conclusion of the current
review.
Detrunking: When the new A428 is completed, the County Council as the
Highway Authority will be required to adopt and maintain the existing trunk
road, which will be downgraded. The County Council wants to secure
assurances about the condition of the road to be handed over,
commitment to upgrading assets to an agreed condition and funding to
maintain for a period of time, and other provisions including bringing the
road to current design standards. SCDC would support this objective
given the potential impact upon local road users in SCDC.
Strategic Transport Scheme Interface and Development Locations:
With the combination of the A428 dualling, the promotion of East West
Rail and other strategic projects coming forwards principally as part of the
Ox-Cam Arc, the project needs to explain the relationship with future
growth and the OxCAm spatial framework..
Archaeology: The County Council wants to secure appropriate
archaeological investigation and reporting, commensurate with the scale
of the project.
Digital Connectivity: The Cambridgeshire Authorities are seeking the
inclusion of a fibre backbone connection as part of the construction of the
project.
There are other issues also being discussed as part of the application
including minerals and waste, Rights of Way, and air quality.
Supporting new utilities infrastructure: The development and
construction of significant new physical infrastructure has the potential to
enable other utilities infrastructure to be aligned with engineering and
related works. The project should set out how it seeks to optimise the
opportunities created from the project to align future infrastructure needs
developed/defined by the OxCam project to the same corridor to minimise
disruption and exploit opportunities to facilitate sustainable development.

Page 61

Options
26. The following options can be considered:
a) To endorse the recommended approach to the consultation with authority to
the Joint Director for Planning and Economic Development to amend the
consultation response.
b) To make amendments to the approach and consultation response.
c) To decide to not respond to the consultation.

Implications for South Cambridgeshire
27.

Following experience with the A14 scheme, the Council has supported the
A428 project and has been working with Cambridgeshire County Council and
Huntingdonshire District Council colleagues to fully evaluate the impact of the
scheme. Together the Cambridgeshire Authorities agree that given the limited
scope of the engagement with Highways England to date and as well as some
of the positions that have been taken on key issues such as climate,
biodiversity, Non-motorised users areas and noise, strong representations will
need to be made. This will be required to minimise the impact of the scheme
on the local environment, climate and secure the best possible scheme for the
residents of Cambridgeshire.

28.

To meet the demanding timescales of the Examination, this report seeks
delegation to the Joint Director of Planning to determine the final response to
and form of the Councils statutory representations in consultation with the
and Lead Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning and Transport and Lead
Cabinet Member for Transformation and Projects . The final response will be
drawn from the areas outlined in this report – but dependent upon further
material and submissions that are expected from Highways England prior to
the time for responses closing on 30th August 2021.

Financial
29. None
Legal
30. The Council is a statutory consultee and required under the Transport and
Works Act to provide comments within the statutory consultation period, which
ends on 2 August.
Staffing
31. None.

Page 62

Risks/Opportunities
32. None.
Equality and Diversity
33. None.
Climate Change
34. The overall scheme would promote more sustainable transport modes
although further details to support this have been requested.

Health & Wellbeing
35. Recommendations have been made in respect of the DCO assessment to

improve health and wellbeing.
Consultation responses
36. Internal consultation was carried out with officers only, with responses
received from a number of technical service areas. These have been
highlighted earlier within the report.

Alignment with Council Priority Areas
Growing local businesses and economies
37. The A428 Project is an important project to the local, and regional economy.
Housing that is truly affordable for everyone to live in
38. The A428 Project is part of an enhancement to the strategic trunk road

network that will help to relieve traffic congestion forecast from growth in
housing and travel.
Being green to our core
39. Delivery of a dual carriageway between Black Cat and Caxton Gibbet will
reduce journey times on the route with a reduction in congestion. However
there is a need for detail design elements of the scheme to improve its ability

Page 63

to support and minimise impacts upon sustainable travel choices and inter
village connectivity.. These matters have been highlighted as part of the
relevant representations in respect of the DCO. It is also important that all
opportunities for the environmental impacts of the road improvements to be
minimised, in line with the Council Objectives and OxCAm Arc Environment
Group Principles. This includes commitments to reduce embodied carbon and
maximise biodiversity net gain.

Background Papers
A428 Relevant Representations

Appendices
Appendix A: A428 Relevant Representations

Report Author:
Chris Carter – Delivery Manager, Strategic Sites
Chenge Taruvinga – Strategic Sites

Page 64

Appendix A: A428 Relevant Representations
A428 Relevant Representations
Cambridgeshire County Council (CCC), Huntingdonshire District Council (HDC) and
South Cambridgeshire District Council (SCDC) are reviewing the A428 Black Cat to
Caxton Gibbet Development Consent Order Application (the Application) and believe
that discussion, further information, and changes to the Application will be required in
the areas set out below. This is based on the current understanding of the
information and may be altered, added to or amended as the review continues and
discussion with Highways England begins.
These are the combined representations of CCC, HDC and SCDC.
Note: CCC is submitting this response in advance of a Committee resolution but will
be considering at the next Highways and Transport Committee.
Biodiversity
 There are concerns about the robustness of the baseline survey data. The
Councils are seeking firm commitment to biodiversity net gain from an agreed
baseline and measured using established methodology.
 The assessment of net gain and the total has not used standard methodology
 Changes to the proposed species mix and habitats in some areas may be
required.
 Mitigation for impact to other habitats such as arable field margins needs to
be discussed and agreed
 The Environmental Masterplan needs to be updated. It is currently
incomplete, doesn’t reflect general works arrangement and doesn’t maximise
biodiversity opportunities
 CCC requirements from other disciplines (e.g. requirement for underpasses /
works to the local roads) will need to be incorporated into the ecological
assessment
 The borrow pit remediation should be reconsidered to improve biodiversity
 Further consideration of the impact on Hen Brook and Wintringham Brook is
required in terms of biodiversity and water quality.
 Some of the assessments of ecological impact do not present robust evidence
to justify the predicted impact.
Landscape
 HE’s commitment to timing of planting, and maintenance regime needs to be
clarified
 Changes to some planting mixes and species may be necessary.
 Some areas (St Neots, Caxton-Toseland) are likely to need more landscape
mitigation proposals.
 Limited connections are provided between some habitats (specifically near
Hen Brook) and should be improved

Page 65





Hedgerows are not considered in the application and this is potentially a
significant issue
The borrow pit remediation should be reconsidered from a landscape
perspective
An agricultural mitigation strategy should be provided to clarify the removal
and reinstatement of agricultural grade land

Noise
 Commitment to hours of operation of works, and monitoring during
construction and operation is required
 Commitment to officer input and control during construction is required
 Cambourne West receptors have not been assessed
 Commitment to detailed local management plans required for specific areas is
required
 Insufficient reasons have been given for the decision to discount mitigation at
the eastern end of the scheme. Further explanation must be given and
discussed with the Councils. Commitment is required for works not to start
until certain conditions are met (i.e. affected properties insulated or residents
relocated)
Air Quality
 The Summary report has been reviewed and currently it is not expected to be
a significant issue, unless there are changes to the Transport Assessment
 Commitment to officer input and control during construction required
Contaminated Land
 Summary report reviewed, unlikely to be a material issue but commitment and
further detail on approach to backfilling borrow pits required
Cultural Heritage
 Requirement for the joint authorities’ archaeology brief to be fully integrated
into the application
 Officers require agreement and approval of areas of the excavation strategy
affected by an over-simplification of evaluation evidence
 Commitment that temporary works will not affect archaeological excavation
areas
 Changes needed on applicant’s objectives and methods for archaeological
investigation and post excavation assessment
 Inconsistency of approach within the proposed scheme at specific areas e.g.
land adjacent to Wintringham Scheduled Ancient Monument needs
adjustment for clarification
 Consideration within the application of archaeology at affected watercourses
required, key areas likely to be Hen Brook and Wintringham Brook

Page 66






Changes to the DCO application needed , to include mapping the
archaeological investigation and protection areas on the General
Arrangement drawings
Engagement with CCC Museums Liaison Officer required for the Public
Archaeology and Community Engagement Strategy
Commitment to skills development and training in the area of cultural heritage

Minerals and Waste
 Insufficient detail exists on the borrow pits to meaningfully assess the
proposals and impacts that will arise from them, including cumulative impacts
and implications for wider specialisms such as cultural heritage.
 Clarity required on the restoration and biodiversity net gain benefits from the
borrow pits
 Borrow pits have not been considered in cumulative assessment which is a
potentially significant concern.
 The works and associated haul routes etc. need to be controlled properly from
the outset. Changes to drafting and Requirements needed
Flooding and Drainage
 Lead Local Flooding Authorities (LLFA) are responding jointly to the
application, noting that the Environment Agency’s concerns largely addressed
 Protective Provisions for CCC as Lead Local Flood Authority are required
 The dis-application of s23 of the Land Drainage Act 1991 has not been
agreed
 CCC noted as maintaining ponds and outfalls although this hasn’t been
discussed and isn’t agreed
 Preference for the design to include reed planting instead of treatment plants
 Design for watercourses and ponds needs early engagement as soon as
possible
 There is a need to discuss and agree how much work will be using LLFA
consenting routes
 Further consideration of the impact on Hen Brook and Wintringham Brook is
required in terms of biodiversity and water quality
 Further evidence is needed to demonstrate there are no downstream flooding
issues at Wintringham Brook
 Flood modelling impact on neighbouring communities needs to be updated
and reviewed if changes are made to the scheme
Climate Change
 The authorities have concerns about the carbon and climate change impact of
the project
 Impact of induced traffic potentially significant
 Clarity needed on conflicts within the documents (i.e. are EV in assessment)
 Impacts on neighbouring communities were raised in scoping but are not
covered in the application

Page 67




6th Carbon Budget and its assessment within the DCO application requires
clarification and discussion
The cumulative impact and relationship of the project with EastWestRail /
other projects require clarification and discussion

Non-Motorised Users and Rights of Way
 There remain significant detailed design, routing, and procedural issues to
discuss and resolve
 There is currently insufficient support for NMUs. The applicant needs to set
out further consideration of the relevant policy requirements regarding
supporting NMUs including Government Guidelines, the Cambridgeshire and
Peterborough Local Transport Plan and Local Plan policies, which require
new development to contribute to an enhanced transport network that
supports an increasing proportion of journeys being undertaken by
sustainable travel modes and seeks an proposal affecting a PROW or other
formal NMU route to protect and enhance it.
 Changes to DCO proposals are required
 Some NMU provision is proposed to be downgraded, this hasn’t been agreed
 Comments in work packages have not been addressed
 Generally, connectivity to local communities is poor
 There are unnecessary gaps in continuous route provision
Traffic Modelling
 Some routing in the base and forecast year models requires reconsideration
and insufficient information has been supplied to the transport authority to
enable it to be checked
 Strategic model flows have been used to build the local junction models but
these flows haven’t been validated for this purpose
 Impacts of the scheme on particular areas of the local road network are of
concern and need to be understood in more detail (specifically St Neots,
Girton Interchange, Coton, others)
 Construction traffic flows need to be understood in more detail to assess
impacts on local communities and the highway asset
Cycling
 LTN 1/20 compliance required for any asset to be maintained by, or handed
over to CCC. A compliant route is required between Cambourne and St
Neots
 Provision for users seems to be sub-standard with a lack of segregation and
gaps in provision (for example at Eltisley)
 Crossings are not acceptable, specifically at A1198 where a grade separated
crossing would not meet LTN 1/20 guidance and an underpass for cyclists
and pedestrians could also be used as a bat crossing.

Page 68










Eltisley Link North roundabout needs to facilitate cyclists who wish to continue
north up the B1040 with a suitable transition from off to on road and be
designed to slow traffic speeds.
Lack of crossing facility on the old A428 between Abbotsley Rd and the
proposed footway/cycle track on Toseland Rd
The proposed footway/cycle track on the proposed bridge on Toseland Rd
needs to allow for cyclists continuing north with a suitable transition from off to
on road
Lack of safe crossing facilities at New Cambridge Rd junction where the
proposed footway/cycle track crosses the slip roads. The proposed bridge on
the B1046 should have provision for cyclists and pedestrians to facilitate a
future segregated route between the villages and St. Neots.
Some provision for cyclists (Toseland Road) has been removed from the
application

Highway Design
 An enforceable commitment from the applicant to Vision Zero is required
 Approval In Principle for highway design including Standards not yet agreed
 The submitted plans do not take account of the County Council’s
requirements regarding Local Road Highway Design Principles. As such the
proposals include unnecessary Departures of Standard for carriageway
widths/cross sections.









The principles to be applied in the design and construction of the Scheme’s
local roads within Cambridgeshire are as follows:
o Consistent application of MCDHW standards and specifications
o Full compliance with standards wherever possible, but departures from
standard are not justified for carriageway width/cross section
o The methods of highway drainage should be considered at the
preliminary design stage
o Holistic design approach is required to avoid unnecessary maintenance
risk/cost to the County Council
A lighting strategy is not in place and will be required to secure acceptable
lighting design for both the new assets and those on the sections to be
detrunked.
Commitment to the principle that no street lighting assets should be older than
2 years old at the point of handover whether on new or detrunked sections is
required.
Detrunking and Assets requires extensive discussion
Boundaries need to be defined, including the land to be handed over. In
principle, CCC will not accept land that is not required for highways purposes.
Changes to DCO drafting required to ensure appropriate protective provisions
in relation to asset handover of local road network, NMU routes, and RoW

Page 69







Detrunking process as set out is unacceptable and requires changes to the
drafting of the DCO to follow a process agreed with the Highway Authority.
De-trunked roads should not be handed over to the Highway Authority until
they are at a reasonable standard agreed with the Highway Authority.
In particular the DCO should require either Protective Provisions with regard
to Highway matters, or entry into an agreement as to handover of new and
de-trunked roads. The agreed Handover Plan and Legal Agreement to be
required under the DCO
Numbering of detrunked roads needs to be included within the application

Highway Network Impact
 Impact on network from construction traffic and re-routing needs to be more
fully modelled and understood together with how any adverse impacts will be
mitigated
 Proposals in the DCO relating to Traffic Manager responsibilities are
unacceptable and will require redrafting to allow for an agreed process
 Permitted construction network routes need to be revised and the restrictions
clarified
 Effective ways of measuring and managing temporary traffic diversions need
to be secured
 More information required on the construction programme and timings for
closures
Digital Connectivity and utiities
 The Councils request that the opportunity is taken as part of this major
investment to install a fibre backbone along the route to enable connectivity
along the corridor
 The opportunity provided by this corridor to provide a conduit to other
potential utilities need to be considered and safeguarded within the project
given its relationship to the wider OxCam programme and known and
unresolved infrastructure and utilities pressures facing the Cambridgeshire
Area.
Other Matters
 There has been no discussion to date of Development Consent Obligations
 There is no provision or discussion of a legal agreement or Protective
Provisions covering Highway matters although this has been requested
 There has been no discussion to date of the detail of drafting in the DCO
 There has been limited discussion to date of matters for the Statement of
Common Ground
 Finally agreement in principle is required in the following areas, followed by
agreement and execution of a detailed legal agreement as part of the DCO as
referred to above and specifically covering:
o Commuted sums

Page 70

o Remedial maintenance of local highway assets impacted by the project
o Adoption of assets
o Funding to cover resource costs in the development of the scheme and
ongoing matters via a Planning Performance Agreement or other
mechanism
o Commitment to minimise cost pressure on the Cambridgeshire Local
Authorities

Page 71

This page is left blank intentionally.

